
City Council Regular Business Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, December 1, 2016, 6:00 p.m. 
City Hall – 705 North Avenue 

 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Approval of agenda. 

 
 

COUNCIL MEETINGS 
City Hall 
Council Chambers 
1st and 3rd Thursdays 
at 
6:00 P.M. 
 
 
Tom Phillips 
Mayor 
 
Council Members: 
Erika Isley 
Ed Kuhl 
David Lester 
Jaki Livingston 
Stephanie Riva 
 
Luke Nelson 
City Manager 
 
Jean Furler 
Finance Director 
 
Jodi Eddleman 
City Clerk 
 
Ryan Coburn 
Fire Chief 
 
Greg Staples 
Police Chief 
 
Tim Hoskins 
Public Works Director 
 
Nancy Kuehl 
Parks & Recreation 
Director 
 
Vacant 
Planning and Economic 
Development Director 
 
Holly Sealine 
Library Director 
 
Jim Dougherty 
City Attorney 

3. Presentations 
• Chad Ross, years of service on Planning and Zoning Commission 
• Introducing Nick Frye, Norwalk Police Officer 

 
4. Welcome of guests and public comment.   

(3 minute limit, no action) 
 

5. Approve minutes 
November 17, 2016 regular city council meeting 

 
6. Consent agenda – 

a) Expenditures 
b) Tax abatements 
c) Liquor license renewal 804 Main LC 0041349 
d) Appoint Barbara Bellizzi to the Norwalk Planning Zoning Commission 
e) Resolution adopting job description for Community Development 

Coordinator 
f) Resolution considering the Public Works Administrative Coordinator 

position and placing Shelley Stravers in that position. 
g) Resolution approving bond purchase agreement for the sale of 

bonds thereunder. 
h) 28E agreement for Mutual Aid Services with Polk County  
i) Resolution awarding contract to Midwest Alarm Systems to install 

the alarm system. 
j) Resolution approving bid award and contract with NAI Electrical 

Contractors. 
7. Public hearing on proposed amendment to the sign regulations chapter of the 

City of Norwalk Zoning Ordinance. – Luke Parris 
 

8. Consideration of first and possibly more readings of an ordinance amending 
the sign regulations sections of the Zoning Ordinance. – Luke Parris 

 
9. Consideration of a resolution approving the site plan amendment to Orchard 

View Townhomes – Luke Parris 
 

10. Consideration of a resolution approving the Final Plat Orchard View 
Townhomes – Luke Parris 

 
11. Update on SubArea One Master Plan, Comprehensive Plan Land Use Chapter 

and Comprehensive Plan Trails Section  – Luke Parris 
 

12. Council inquiries and Staff Updates 
 

13. Closed session pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 21.5(1) ( c ) to discuss strategy 
with council in a matter that is presently in litigation where its disclosure would 
be likely to prejudice or disadvantage position of the city in that litigation. 

14. Adjournment 



UNABRIDGED MINUTES OF THE NORWALK CITY COUNCIL MEETING ON 11-17-16 
(M inut es  t o  be  approved at  t heDecember1 ,  2016  meet ing)  

 
Mayor Phillips called the City Council meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. Present at 
roll call: Ed Kuhl, Stephanie Riva, Erika Isley, David Lester and Jaki Livingston(RC 
= roll  call  vote) 
 
Staff present included: Luke Nelson, City Manager; Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk; 
Jean Furler, Finance Director; Nancy Kuehl, Parks and Recreation Director; Holly 
Sealine, Library Director; Greg Staples, Police Chief; Tim Hoskins, Public Works 
Director; Ryan Coburn, Fire Chief; Luke Parris, Interim Community Development 
Director; Tony Bellizzi, City Engineer and Jim Dougherty, City Attorney. 
 
Mayor Phillips asked that item I on consent be removed from the agenda. 
 
16-258 Motion by Kuhl, seconded by Isley to approve the agenda, carried 
unanimously by voice vote.   
 
16-259 Motion by Riva, seconded by Livingston to approve the minutes of the 
November 3rd regular city council meeting, carried unanimously by voice vote. 
 
Consent included tax abatements; liquor license renewal for Burke Golf Warrior 
Run; Resolution 1117-16-142 approving annual financial report (AFR) for the City 
of Norwalk;  Resolution 1117-16-143 approving annual urban renewal report 
(RUA) for the City of Norwalk; Resolution 1117-16-144 approving tax increment 
finance (TIF) certification for the City of Norwalk; Resolution 1117-16-145 
approving the purchase of a new 1 ton truck and refurbishing an existing dump 
truck; Resolution 1117-16-146 authorizing the disposal of JD riding mower; 
Resolution 1117-16-147 authorizing the use of a preliminary official statement for 
the sale of bonds; Resolution 1117-16-148 approving payment to United 
Properties for the development agreement approved January 21, 2016 for 
infrastructure improvements in the Urban Renewal Area 91005 known as 
Marketplace; and expenditures. 

ACME TOOLS SUPPLIES 199.00 LASER RESOURCES  MAINTENANCE 367.81 
ADVENTURE LIGHT  SIGN LIGHTS 16.47 LUCINDA SPERRY ART CLASSES 260.00 
ANKENY SANITATION  TRASH SERVICE 16.64 MARY JANE SHARP FITNESS CLASSES 908.95 
BEST PORTTOILETS SPORTS COMPLEX 140.00 MEDICAP PHARMACY SUPPLIES 404.27 
BOUND TREE MED MEDICAL SUPPLIES 117.16 MENARDS TOILET REPAIR 232.69 
CAPITAL SAN  SUPPLIES 603.47 MERCY COLLEGE E CARD ORDER 202.00 
CARPENTER UNI UNIFORMS 4,463.21 METRO WASTE LARGE ITEM 1,000.00 
CFS INSPECTIONS SUPPLIES 1,008.00 NANCY KUEHL SUPPLIES 146.17 
CITY OF WDM WESTCOM 38,200.41 NAPA AUTO PART PW TRUCK HITCH 34.18 
CNM OUTDOOR XMARK MOWERS 123.76 NICHOLS EQUIP  RENTAL 1,496.80 
CONSTR & AG SUPPLIES 149.48 NWTC PUBLICATIONS 176.47 
CORELL RECYCLING ASPHALT 932.57 NORWALK HARD SUPPLIES 122.09 
DCI GROUP BEARDSLEY  7,210.00 NORWALK READY- NORWOOD/CASADY 2,979.00 
DES MOINES IRON MATERIALS 340.71 NORWALK YOUTH  WRESTLING CLUB 1,424.00 
DIANE BURROWS NCIS ASSESS 0.00 RANKIN COM  MAINTENANCE 201.37 
FAREWAY SUPPLIES 62.10 RED WING UNIFORM ALLOW  239.48 
FREEDOM TIRE  P 127 TIRES 500.66 REFLECTIVE APPAREL UNIFORM ALLOW 57.17 
G & L CLOTHING UNIFORM ALLOW  834.38 REGISTER MEDIA  NOTICE 21.04 
GRIMES ASPHAL MATERIALS 58,735.98 SCOTT RUPP DOG PARK SIGN 326.76 
HALLETT MATERIALS ROADSTONE 2,080.27 SPRINGER PEST  PEST CONTROL 68.00 
HARVEY'S AUTO CONVEYOR #1047 1,454.31 STOREY KENWORTHY TAX FORMS 153.50 
HD SUPPLY  CAULKING KNIVES 27.97 TERMINIX INTL PEST CONTROL 70.00 
HP INC DOCK STATION 746.70 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES MAINTENANCE 115.00 
IMWCA WC AUDIT PREMIUM 1,074.00 UNITED PROP INV IMPROVEMENTS 1,300,000.00 
INDIANOLA FIRE AMBULANCE BILLING 630.00 USA BLUE BOOK LOCATE FLAGS 706.09 
INDOFF INC TONER 100.81 VOORHEES TAEKWONDO 454.83 
IOWA LAW  BASIC TRAINING 12,765.00 W REEVES  SUPPLIES 64.20 



IOWA WINDOW  BLDG MAINT 243.80 WATERS EDGE IMPROVEMENTS ENG 3,000.00 
JAMES OIL DIESEL 11,436.31 WAYNE DENNIS AIR FILTERS 58.56 
JDA CONSTR WNORTH TRAIL 110,233.53 ZIEGLER INC. SUPPLIES 391.05 
KELTEK INC CONTRACT 3,237.00 

    
16-260 Motion by Livingston, seconded by Riva to approve the consent 
agenda, passed unanimously, RC. 
 
Public hearing on proposed amendment to the Norwalk Urban Renewal Area 
Mayor Phillips opened the public hearing on the amendment to the Norwalk 
Urban Renewal Area at 6:06 p.m. Eddleman reported receiving no comments.   
 
Joe Zerfas, 4814 Lakewood Drive asked the council what would be happening 
in that area. 
 
Steve Gillotti, Road Contractors addressed Mr. Zerfas and said that that initially 
they are moving the wetland areas south to restructure the area.  There is no 
residential in the area only commercial. Councilmember Kuhl asked about the 
sunset on the urban renewal area.  Luke Nelson responded that it is for 20 years. 
Mayor Phillips closed the public hearing at 6:12 p.m. 
 
16-261 Motion by Livingston, seconded by Riva to approve Resolution 1117-16-
149 and to approve the first reading of an Ordinance providing for the division 
of taxes levied on taxable property in the 2016 addition to the Norwalk Urban 
Renewal Area pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, passed 
unanimously, RC. 
 
16-262 Motion by Livingston, seconded by Isley to waive the second and pass 
the third reading of Ordinance 16-18 an Ordinance providing for the division of 
taxes levied on taxable property in the 2016 addition to the Norwalk Urban 
Renewal Area pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, passed 
unanimously, RC. 
 
Public hearing on proposed development agreement with K&F LLC 
Mayor Phillips opened the public hearing on the amendment to the Norwalk 
Urban Renewal Area at 6:15 p.m. Eddleman reported receiving no comments.  
Mayor Phillilps closed the public hearing at 6:25 p.m. 
 
Livingston had concern about K&F and DCI managing the project. Mayor Phillips 
stated that DCI is managing the project and K&F is financing it, Jim Dougherty 
stated that they are two legally separated entities.  
 
16-263 Motion by Kuhl, seconded by Isley to approve Resolution 1117-16-150 
approving development agreement with K&F LLC authorizing annual 
appropriation tax increment payments and pledging certain tax increment 
revenues to the payment of the agreement, passed unanimously, RC. 
 
Consideration of a resolution for additional items at the Norwalk Aquatic Center 
Project. 
 
16-264 Motion by Kuhl, seconded by Livingston to approve Resolution 1117-16-
151 making award of the construction contract for the Aquatic Center 
Improvements, passed unanimously, RC. 
 
Consideration of a resolution approving the contract and bond for the Norwalk 
Aquatic Center Project. 
 
16-265 Motion by Kuhl, seconded by Riva to approve Resolution 1117-16-152 
approving the contract and bond for the Norwalk Aquatic Center Project, 
passed unanimously, RC. 



Staff reports and council inquiries  
Nelson reported that he and the mayor had given the Warren County 
Supervisors an update of what is happening in Norwalk.  The Economic 
Development Position has been posted, the wage study is 2 to 3 weeks out from 
being completed. 
Riva gave an update from the MPO, Veterans Parkway expansion and that the 
federal function classification had changed on Beardsley and 50th.  
Staples reported that Officer Frye began work Monday. 
Hoskins gave an update that 50th Street bridge is open, Beardsley is going well, 
the trail project is almost complete. 
The library received a rebate in excess of $16,000 for the boiler they purchased 
and installed. 
Tony Bellizzi gave an update on Orchard View, Cort Landing and Blooming 
Heights. 
Luke Parris informed the council that there would be some changes coming to 
the sign ordinance at the next council meeting. 
Mayor Phillips reported that HyVee had a tour of Norwalk and was happy with 
the growth. 
 
16-266 Motion by Riva, seconded by Livingston to enter into closed session, 
passed unanimously, RC. 
 
16-267 Motion by Kuhl, seconded by Livingston to enter into open session, 
passed unanimously, RC. 
 
16-268   Motion by Riva, seconded by Livingston to adjourn the meeting at 7:05 
p.m., carried unanimously by voice vote. 

__________________________________ 
 Tom Phillips, Mayor 

Attest: 
________________________________ 
Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk 
 
 
 



 

 
BUSINESSOF  THECITYCOUNCIL 

AGENDASTATEMENT 
 
 

Item No.06 
For Meeting of 12/01/2016 

 
Item Title: Consent Agenda 
 
Contact Person: Jodi Eddleman,CityClerk 

 
Expenditures 
This item is on the agenda for the approval of payment per the attached claims list. 

 
Tax abatements 
The following taxabatementapplications were submitted for approval: 
 
BRIAN SLYCORD 29630 LEXINGTON DR   REMODEL 50,000.00 
TANZANITE HOMES 2727 SHADY LANE  SFR  200,000.00 
TANZANITE HOMES 408 ORCHARD HILLS DR SFR  200,000.00 
TANZANITE HOMES 707 ORCHARD VIEW DR SFR  200,000.00 
ALLEGIANT HOMES 1009 SILVERADO DR  SFR  370,000.00 
ALLEGIANT HOMES 1003 SILVERADO DR  SFR  370,000.00 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING 1009 NORWOOD CT  SFR  210,000.00 
NEIGHBORHOOD BUILD 2123 SERENITY CIRCLE  SFR  359,000.00 
BRUCE BAIN  1134 CORT LANE  SFR  556,000.00 
ALAN MARQUIS  3316 G 14 HWY  SFR  450,000.00 
ROBERT MAURO  2842 PRAIRIE ROSE DR  SFR  350,000.00 

  
Liquor License  
Renewal for 804 Main LC0041349 
 
Resolutions 

e.) Resolution adopting job description for Community Development Coordinator 
f.)  Resolution approving job description for Public Works Administrative Coordinator position and 
placing Shelley Stravers in that position. 
g.) Resolution setting a date of meeting at which it is proposed to approve a development 
agreement with Road Contractors, Inc., including annual appropriation tax increment payments in 
an amount not to exceed $2,800,000. 
h.) Resolution entering into 28E agreement with Polk County and the City of Norwalk for mutual aid. 
i.)  Resolution awarding contract to Midwest Alarm Systems to install alarm at Public Safety 
j.)  Resolution awarding bid and contract with NAI Electrical Contractors. 

 
Appointment 
Appointment of Barbara Bellizzi to the Norwalk Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Appoint representatives to the Des Moines Wastewater Reclamation Authority, Jaki Livingston – 
Primary, Tim Hoskins – Alternate  

 
Staff Recommendation: Approve consent agenda on a roll call vote. 



11-23-2016 10:41 AM                                  120116 COUNCIL CLAIMS                                      PAGE:     1

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

ADMINISTRATION         T & A WATER DEPOSI KRUSE CONSTRUCTION                              METER REFUND                       943.62_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             943.62

 

POLICE OPERATIONS      GENERAL FUND       CARPENTER UNIFORM                               UNIFORM ALLOW LEWISTON             207.98

                                                                                          UNIFORM ALLOW FRYE                 143.43

                                                                                          UNIFORM ALLOW FRYE                 821.76

                                                                                          UNIFORM ALLOW DUNLOP               289.96

                                          INDOFF INC                                      2017 CALENDARS                      69.00

                                          CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLIES                       JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                  4.95

                                          HARVEY'S AUTOMOTIVE &                           P132                               264.81

                                                                                          P 132                              240.87

                                                                                          P128                               389.98

                                                                                          P132                                88.35

                                          MENARDS                                         TOOLS                               55.09

                                          CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      113.88

                                          KELTEK INCORPORATED                             P125 DECOMMISSION                  411.23

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONES                        779.90

                                          GREGG YOUNG                                     P132                               314.62

                                                                                          P131                               389.29

                                                                                          P131                               307.44

                                          POLICE EXECUTIVE RESEARCH FORUM                 2017 PERF ANNUAL DUES              200.00

                                          DES MOINES PASTORAL COUNSELING CENTER           MMPI FRYE                          190.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,282.54

 

FIRE PROTECTION        GENERAL FUND       CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      140.76

                                          CAPPEL'S ACE HARDWARE                           UTILITY HEATER                      39.99_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             180.75

 

BUILDING INSPRCTOR     GENERAL FUND       INDOFF INC                                      OFFICE SUPPLIES                     10.92

                                          CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      121.02

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONES                        187.12_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             319.06

 

ANIMAL CONTROL         GENERAL FUND       ANIMAL RESCUE LEAGUE OF IOWA                    LIVE ANIMAL INTAKE                 125.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             125.00

 

GARBAGE                GENERAL FUND       METRO WASTE AUTHORITY                           GARBAGE SERVICE                 28,794.72_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          28,794.72

 

OTHER PUBLIC WORKS     GENERAL FUND       INDOFF INC                                      OFFICE SUPPLIES                     14.34

                                          CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLIES                       JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                117.00

                                          CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      153.50

                                          RED WING SHOE STORE                             UNIFORM ALLOW BENGE                239.48_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             524.32

 

LIBRARY SERVICES       GENERAL FUND       CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      167.15

                                          CAPPEL'S ACE HARDWARE                           HEATERS                             89.98_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             257.13

 

PARKS                  GENERAL FUND       CAPPEL'S ACE HARDWARE                           FASTENERS                           26.83_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              26.83

 

RECREATION             GENERAL FUND       MAD SCIENCE OF CENTRAL IOWA                     MAD SCIENCE OF CENTRAL IOW       1,659.00

                                          CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      113.88

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONES                        167.14

                                          LUCINDA SPERRY                                  ART CLASS                          208.00



11-23-2016 10:41 AM                                  120116 COUNCIL CLAIMS                                      PAGE:     2

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                          ANA EAGAN                                       VOLLEYBALL                         100.00

                                          LUCAS WHITE                                     VOLLEYBALL                         100.00

                                                                                          WOMENS VOLLEYBALL                  156.34_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,504.36

 

SPORTS COMPLEX         GENERAL FUND       IOWA CUBS SPORTS TURF MANAGEMENT                LASER GRADING                    1,800.00

                                          CAPPEL'S ACE HARDWARE                           KEYS FOR COMPLEX                    11.94_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,811.94

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  GENERAL FUND       ICMA                                            ECON DEV DIR JOB AD                297.00

                                          CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      136.68

                                          PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPERS OF IOWA                 2017 MEMBERSHIP                    335.00

                                          LUKE PARRIS                                     MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT PARR         189.00

                                          NORWALK SEASONAL SERVICES, LLC                  816 E 17TH                          15.00

                                                                                          814 E 17TH                          15.00

                                          WEST INTERACTIVE SERVICES CORPORATION           WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT              2,500.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,487.68

 

FINANCIAL ADMINSTRATIO GENERAL FUND       EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES                         SETTLEMENT                      33,000.00

                                          CITY OF CLIVE                                   IAPELRA WINTER CONFERENCE           25.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          33,025.00

 

CITY HALL & GENERAL BU GENERAL FUND       INDOFF INC                                      OFFICE SUPPLIES                     28.22

                                          CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLIES                       JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                 82.75

                                          NORTH WARREN TOWN & COUNTY NEWS                 PUBLIC HEARINGS                    165.75

                                                                                          FINANCIAL REPORT                    91.00

                                                                                          MINUTES                             89.37

                                          CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      152.32

                                          MEDIACOM                                        INTERNET SERVICE                   162.90

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONES                        108.41

                                          TYLER TECHNOLOGIES                              CASH DRAWER                         40.00

                                          PITNEY BOWES                                    POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE              735.00

                                          DES MOINES REGISTER                             DAILY SUBSCRIPTION                  40.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,695.72

 

INFORMATION SYSTEMS    GENERAL FUND       ONENECK IT SOLUTIONS LLC                        SMART NET MAINTENANCE            2,656.25

                                          THAWTE INC.                                     SSL WEB 1 YEAR                     199.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,855.25

 

STREETS                ROAD USE TAX FUND  CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                       60.35

                                          NORWALK HARDWARE & AUTO                         SUPPLIES                            28.93

                                          NORWALK READY-MIXED CONCRETE, INC.              HUNTER & SHADY LN                  251.00

                                          TOMPKINS INDUSTRIES                             SANDER SPINNER                     536.16

                                          HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS                            TOOLS                               27.97

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONES                         20.69

                                                                                          CELL PHONES                         62.05

                                          HOTSY CLEANING SYSTEMS                          PARTS                              275.07

                                          JAMES OIL COMPANY LLC                           FUEL OIL                         3,571.08

                                                                                          GASOHOL                          3,566.40

                                          SIMPLEX GRINNELL                                PW INSPECTION                      147.49

                                          JGS OLD FURNITURE SYSTEMS                       PW DESK                          1,453.00

                                          CAPPEL'S ACE HARDWARE                           DOOR OPENER BATTERIES                6.99

                                          WEST INTERACTIVE SERVICES CORPORATION           WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT              1,887.50

                                          IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION               SNOW FENCE                         295.75_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          12,190.43

 



11-23-2016 10:41 AM                                  120116 COUNCIL CLAIMS                                      PAGE:     3

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

STREET LIGHTING        ROAD USE TAX FUND  IOWA SIGNAL INC                                 YELLOW ARROW                        81.38_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              81.38

 

POLICE OPERATIONS      SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                    1,616.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,616.00

 

FIRE PROTECTION        SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                    4,248.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           4,248.00

 

RESCUE                 SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                    2,707.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,707.00

 

BUILDING INSPECTOR     SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                       43.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              43.00

 

STREETS                SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                    1,648.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,648.00

 

GARBAGE                SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                      128.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             128.00

 

LIBRARY SERVICES       SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                       64.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              64.00

 

PARKS                  SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                      107.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             107.00

 

RECREATION             SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                      268.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             268.00

 

SPORTS COMPLEX         SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                      128.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             128.00

 

SWIMMING POOL          SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                      107.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             107.00

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                       64.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              64.00

 

CITY HALL & GENERAL BU SPECIAL REVENUE    IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                       65.00

                                          UNITY POINT CLINIC NORWALK                      FLU SHOTS                        1,740.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,805.00

 

LOFFREDO GARDENS PROJE TIF                LOFFREDO GARDENS INC                            FY 16/17 REBATE #1               2,760.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,760.00

 

REBATES                TIF                O LEARY FLOWERS                                 FY 16/17 REBATE #1                 933.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             933.00

 

REBATES                TIF                LA QUERCIA                                      FY 16/17 REBATE #1               3,096.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,096.00

 

REBATES                TIF                CAPITAL CITY FRUIT                              FY 16/17 REBATE #1              30,672.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          30,672.00

 

REBATES                TIF                ROWE ELECTRONICS                                FY 16/17 REBATE #1               4,410.00



11-23-2016 10:41 AM                                  120116 COUNCIL CLAIMS                                      PAGE:     4

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

                                                                                                                     _______________

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           4,410.00

 

REBATES                TIF                COLONIAL MEADOWS, L.C.                          FY 16/17 REBATE #1              44,383.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          44,383.00

 

REBATES                TIF                UNITED PROPERTIES INVESTMENT COMPANY,           FY 16/17 REBATE #1             370,560.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         370,560.00

 

REBATES                TIF                GREGG YOUNG                                     FY 16/17 REBATE #1              31,065.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          31,065.00

 

POLICE OPERATIONS      CIP - PUBLIC SAFET KELTEK INCORPORATED                             POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT        33,938.93

                                          AIRPORT SIGNS AND GRAPHICS                      POLICE VEHICLE SIGN                876.22_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          34,815.15

 

PARKS & TRAILS CAPITAL CONST FUND PARKS & VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.                           NORTH AV TRAIL                   4,670.98_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           4,670.98

 

NCIS Infrastructure    CIP-NCIS INFRASTRU SOILTEK                                         AERATE                           6,917.40_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           6,917.40

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  STORM WATER DETENT VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.                           REG SW DET AND GREENBELT         4,883.89

                                                                                          REG SW DET AND GREENBELT        37,007.65_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          41,891.54

 

STREETS                50TH STREET BRIDGE CALHOUN BURNS AND ASSOC                         50TH AV BRIDGE                   9,734.02_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           9,734.02

 

OPERATION AND MAINTENE WATER FUND         IOWA RURAL WATER ASSOC.                         2017 MEMBERSHIP                    375.00

                                          IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                      289.00

                                          MUNICIPAL SUPPLY                                PARTS                              778.45

                                          IOWA ONE CALL                                   LOCATE SERVICE                     974.70

                                          SOILTEK                                         TERRASEEDING                     1,214.40

                                          ACME TOOLS                                      ROTARY HAMMER                      179.00

                                          TYLER TECHNOLOGIES                              MAIL ASSIST                        900.00

                                          WEST INTERACTIVE SERVICES CORPORATION           WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT              1,000.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,710.55

 

ADMINISTRATION         WATER FUND         CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      105.35

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONES                         20.68

                                                                                          CELL PHONES                         80.02_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             206.05

 

OPERATION AND MAINTENA SEWER FUND         IMWCA                                           FY17 PREMIUMS                      107.00

                                          ELLIOTT EQUIPMENT CO                            ALUMINUM REDUCER                   290.54

                                          VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.                           ENG SVC SUB AREA 1 SAN SEW       3,866.47

                                          G & L CLOTHING                                  UNIFORM ALLOW SCHULTZ              195.48

                                          WEST INTERACTIVE SERVICES CORPORATION           WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT              1,000.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,459.49

 

ADMINISTRATION         SEWER FUND         CENTURYLINK                                     PHONE SERVICE                      150.00

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONES                         20.68

                                                                                          CELL PHONES                         11.01_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             181.69

 

STORM SEWERS (DRAINAGE STORM WATER UTILIT NORWALK HARDWARE & AUTO                         SUPPLIES                            33.96



11-23-2016 10:41 AM                                  120116 COUNCIL CLAIMS                                      PAGE:     5

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONES                         52.05

                                          WEST INTERACTIVE SERVICES CORPORATION           WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT              1,000.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,086.01

 

                                   =============== FUND TOTALS ================

                                   001  GENERAL FUND                  80,890.30

                                   110  ROAD USE TAX FUND             12,271.81

                                   112  SPECIAL REVENUE               12,933.00

                                   125  TIF                          487,879.00

                                   310  CIP - PUBLIC SAFETY           34,815.15

                                   325  CONST FUND PARKS & TRAILS      4,670.98

                                   405  CIP-NCIS INFRASTRUCTURE        6,917.40

                                   420  STORM WATER DETENTION PRO     41,891.54

                                   435  50TH STREET BRIDGE PROJEC      9,734.02

                                   600  WATER FUND                     5,916.60

                                   605  T & A WATER DEPOSITS             943.62

                                   610  SEWER FUND                     5,641.18

                                   740  STORM WATER UTILITY            1,086.01

                                   --------------------------------------------

                                                GRAND TOTAL:         705,590.61

                                   --------------------------------------------

TOTAL PAGES:    5

APPROVED BY:      __________________________________________________

APPROVED BY:      __________________________________________________



11-23-2016 10:41 AM                                  120116 COUNCIL CLAIMS                                      PAGE:     6

                                                  SELECTION CRITERIA

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

SELECTION OPTIONS

VENDOR SET:       01-CITY OF NORWALK

VENDOR:           All

CLASSIFICATION:   All

BANK CODE:        Include: AP

ITEM DATE:        11/19/2016 THRU 12/01/2016

ITEM AMOUNT:      99,999,999.00CR THRU  99,999,999.00

GL POST DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

CHECK DATE:        0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PAYROLL SELECTION

PAYROLL EXPENSES: NO

CHECK DATE:        0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PRINT OPTIONS

PRINT DATE:       None

SEQUENCE:         By Department

DESCRIPTION:      Distribution

GL ACCTS:         NO

REPORT TITLE:     120116 COUNCIL CLAIMS

SIGNATURE LINES:  2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PACKET OPTIONS

 

INCLUDE REFUNDS:  YES

INCLUDE OPEN ITEM:YES

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



ELAN NOV STATEMENT DUE DATE 12/9/16 BALANCE
10/14 - 11/10 ACH PAID ON DUE DATE $5,904.73

CARD TRANSACTION 
DATE VENDOR AMOUNT G/L CODED REASON FOR USE RECIEPT 

RECEIVED

KUEHL
0073 10/27/2016 TARGET $212.91 001.5.440.2.6350 BEGGARS NIGHT CANDY X

$212.91

HOSKINS
4528 10/13/2016 SUMMIT SIGN $199.70 REQUESTED

10/13/2016 ISU INTRANS $65.00 110.5.210.1.6230 BALLARD TRAINING X
10/13/2016 ISU INTRANS $65.00 110.5.210.1.6230 HOSKINS TRAINING X
10/19/2016 SP*LPS DESIGNJET STR $286.57 110.5.210.2.6350 FORMATTER CORE X
10/24/2016 SP*LPS DESIGNJET STR $106.39 110.5.210.2.6350 CARRIAGE BELT X
11/07/2016 EVERBLADES HEATED WIND $147.75 110.5.210.2.6332 HEATED WINDSHIELD WIPERS X
11/08/2016 BUR*SURPLUS CENTER $616.37 110.5.210.2.6350 HYD CYL CROSSTUBE X

$1,486.78

SEALINE
0975 NONE $0.00

$0.00

WESTVOLD
3400 10/26/2016 HARD ROCK ROOM RESERV $166.88 001.5.110.1.6240 TRI TECH CONFERENCE WESTVOLD X

10/31/2016 SQU*SQ*THE RIB SHACK $11.63 001.5.110.1.6240 FOOD - INVESTIGATION X
$178.51

INMAN
8995 10/26/2016 C FRESH MARKET $5.94 001.5.410.2.6417 CHILDRENS PUMPKIN PARTY X

$5.94

COBURN
0678 10/16/2016 ACE HARDWARE $87.72 001.5.150.2.6504 DRYVAC X

10/23/2016 HARBOR FREIGHT $118.70 001.5.150.2.6350 STEEL JACK X
10/25/2016 IEMSA $150.00 001.5.160.1.6230 DARST CONFERENCE X
10/25/2016 IEMSA $330.00 001.5.160.1.6230 VETTERICK CONFERENCE X
10/26/2016 CULVERS $18.06 001.5.150.1.6682 2 MEALS NEWTON X
10/26/2016 TWIST BAR AND GRILL $47.15 001.5.150.1.6682 MEAL WISCONSIN X
10/27/2016 BP ROSENDALE $51.50 001.5.150.2.6331 GAS WISCONSIN X
10/28/2016 CASEY'S $49.31 001.5.150.2.6331 GAS WILLIAMSBURG X
10/29/2016 PIZZA HUT $85.60 001.5.150.2.6520 PIZZAS X
10/27/2016 RADISSON HOTEL $190.07 001.5.150.1.6240 CONFERENCE HOTEL X
11/01/2016 REBATE PIZZA HUT ($3.42) 001.5.150.2.6520 PIZZAS N/A

$1,124.69

PARRIS
1932 10/19/2016 BENT RIVER BREWING CO $11.63 001.5.599.1.6240 MEAL BURLINGTON CHECK

10/21/2016 MCDONALDS $6.41 001.5.599.1.6240 MEAL BURLINGTON X
10/21/2016 CATFISH BEND INN $154.56 001.5.599.1.6240 BURLINGTON HOTEL X

$172.60

LOUISE
1956 NONE $0.00

$0.00

STRAVERS
0585 10/28/2016 CASEY'S $25.02 001.5.170.1.6182 PIZZAS X

11/04/2016 AMAZON.COM $15.75 001.5.650.2.6506 MAP HANGERS X
11/04/2016 AMAZON.COM $15.75 001.5.650.2.6506 MAP HANGERS X
11/04/2016 AMAZON.COM $15.75 001.5.650.2.6506 MAP HANGERS X
11/047 AMAZON.COM $15.75 001.5.650.2.6506 MAP HANGERS X



11/04/2016 AMAZON.COM $15.75 001.5.650.2.6506 MAP HANGERS X
11/04/2016 AMAZON.COM $15.75 001.5.650.2.6506 MAP HANGERS X
11/04/2016 AMAZON.COM $15.75 001.5.650.2.6506 MAP HANGERS X
11/04/2016 AMAZON.COM $15.75 001.5.650.2.6506 MAP HANGERS X

$151.02

STAPLES
5287 10/13/2016 IN *USA CUSTOM PAD COR $21.50 001.5.110.2.6506 NOTEBOOKS X

10/13/2016 COPQUEST, INC. $61.95 001.5.110.1.6181 BACK ORDERED ITEM FROM OCT X
10/15/2016 SQ TAXI CAB SAN DIEGO $23.04 001.5.110.1.6240 AIRPORT CAB REQUESTED
10/15/2016 AMERICAN AIRLINES $25.00 001.5.110.1.6240 CHECKED BAG X
10/15/2016 COSTA AZUL CORONADO $17.58 001.5.110.1.6240 MEAL X
10/16/2016 OCEAN ROOM $16.00 001.5.110.1.6240 MEAL X
10/16/2016 ASTI RISTORANTE $23.44 001.5.110.1.6240 MEAL X
10/17/2016 THE FISH MARKET SD $32.95 001.5.110.1.6240 MEAL X
10/18/2016 CAFÉ SEVILLA SD $19.70 001.5.110.1.6240 MEAL X
10/19/2016 FEDEX $18.75 001.5.110.2.6508 AWARD SHIPPING X
10/19/2016 FEDEX $10.00 001.5.110.2.6508 AWARD SHIPPING X
10/19/2016 UBER $4.75 001.5.110.1.6240 AIRPORT CAB X
10/19/2016 AMERICAN AIRLINES $25.00 001.5.110.1.6240 CHECKED BAG X
10/19/2016 ARTISAN MARKET $13.91 001.5.110.1.6240 MEAL X
10/20/2016 SPORTS PAGE GRILL $13.43 001.5.110.1.6240 WARREN CHIEFS MEETING X
10/21/2016 RESIDENCE IN GAS LAMP SD $1,077.40 001.5.110.1.6240 IACP - HOTEL X
10/24/2016 SUBWAY $20.70 001.5.110.1.6240 RECRUIT LUNCH X
10/31/2016 USPS $7.57 001.5.110.2.6508 CERTIFIED LETTER X
11/09/2016 ACE HARDWARE $21.38 001.5.110.2.6507 CAR WASH SUPPLIES X

$1,454.05

FURLER
9255 10/20/2016 IA COUNTY RECORDERS $46.32 REQUESTED

10/22/2016 GRANDSTAND $1,024.94 184.5.430.2.6413 DOG PARK PASSES X
$1,071.26

NELSON
9973 10/13/2016 PARKING RAMP DM $5.25 001.5.610.1.6182 LAWSUIT MEETING X

10/17/2016 CAL'S FINE FOOD $17.12 001.5.610.1.6182 CITY MANAGERS MEETING X
11/03/2016 ACE HARDWARE $24.60 001.5.650.2.6310 HDMI CABLE X

$46.97

PHILLIPS
0097 NONE $0.00

$0.00



Liquor license summary forDecember 1 council meeting
Name of Applicant/Corp, Sole Propriertor/Partnership: Barkham LLC
Name of Business: 804Main
Address of Premises: 804 Main Street
License # LC0041349
License And Privileges: Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) Sunday Sales
Type of Request: Renewal
Dates: 12/20/2016 - 12/19/2017
Sketch on file x

Lease, Final Sales Contract or Warranty deed on file x
Premises Address correct x
Notarized Statement x

Dram Shop: provided by applicants insurance company.
Police background check run: x
Fire Inspection Done: x
Premise zoned correctly x
City Clerks office: x



 
 
 
 

 
 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 Item No. 6d 
 For Meeting of 12.1.2016 
   

ITEM TITLE: Appointment of Planning & Zoning Commission Member 
CONTACT PERSON: Luke Parris  

   
SUMMARY EXPLANATION & HISTORY:  
The Planning & Zoning Commission had Chad Ross step down from his position recently.  The Code states that 
Council appoints Commission members.   
 
Our department reviewed applications we had from our last vacancy and felt we had a solid group of 
candidates.  The group fell into two categories; those with technical expertise related to Planning and Zoning 
and those with a long history in the community.  We chose the strongest candidate from each category and 
forwarded those to the Mayor for his review and asked him to make the recommendation to the Council.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
The Mayor has chosen Barbara Bellizzi as his recommendation.  Barbara Bellizzi is a retired Civil Engineer and 
has lived in Norwalk for 5+ years.  She has not previously served on any boards or commissions in Norwalk, but 
prior to living in Norwalk, Barbara lived in the Des Moines area and served her community on several boards 
there.  Barbara retired from the Iowa DOT and has much experience in construction and managing road 
projects, along with designing projects.  She also has experience in the areas of transportation and working 
with the public in the planning of projects.  Barbara would like to be involved in Norwalk and feels her 
experience would benefit the Planning and Zoning Commission.   

Page 1 of 1 



 
 
 
 

 
 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 Item 6e 
For Meeting of 

 
12-1-2016 

   
ITEM TITLE: Resolution adopting position description Community Dev Coordinator 
CONTACT PERSON: Luke Nelson 

   
SUMMARY EXPLANATION & HISTORY:  
Attached is a position description for Community Development Coordinator. 
 
As part of the creation of the Public Works Administrative Coordinator position, and the plan to promote 
Shelley Stravers to that position, Community Development will be in need of hiring this administrative role.  
The most recent job description for this position is not current with the tasks that are being performed.  Prior 
to hiring a new person for this position, staff would like the position to reflect the current tasks required for 
the role.  With the understanding that the salary range may possibly change after the results of the City-wide 
salary study are in, we will also need to set a starting salary range for this position.  Based on the results of 
that study, the salary range for this position may be adjusted.  Additionally, after a 90 day probation period, 
the salary of the new hire could be adjusted based on performance and the results of the City-wide salary 
study. 
 
The current salary range for the outdated job description is $25,000 - $37,000.  The wage study will help the 
City finalize the wage range once that study is complete. 
 
The attached resolution adopts the position description for the Community Development Coordinator.  In 
addition, there is a timeline at the end of this Agenda Statement that outlines the process for placement of 
staff.  This is a guide. 
 
FUNDING:  
This position is already funded in the current budget.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Approve the resolution adopting the attached job description. 
2. Take no action at this time. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
By moving forward with the plan to move Shelley to Public Works and hiring a new Comm Dev Coordinator the 
City will help assure a seamless transition and quality services for taxpayers.  Shelley is dedicated to assisting 
with this transition as is Laura Staples (part-time office staff).  Staff recommends Alternative 1. 
 
 
  

Page 1 of 2 



Summary Timeline: 
The following is a proposed timeline that was put together in order to help the Community Development and 
Public Works departments plan for proposed personnel changes: 
 
Nov 1 – Job descriptions were written for Public Works Administrative Coordinator and Community 
Development Coordinator. 
 
Prior to Dec 1 – Luke Nelson meets with committee to discuss job descriptions, possible adoption of those at 
the Dec 1 meeting, and promotion of Shelley on Dec 2. 
 
Dec 1 – Council approves both Public Works Administrative Coordinator but will wait on the City-wide salary 
study before setting salary.  Shelley Stravers is promoted into this position and her salary will stay at her 
current salary until the City-wide salary study has been completed.  Council also approves Community 
Development Coordinator job description along with a starting salary range for this position, equivalent to the 
existing salary range for the current position held by Shelley.  This range can be changed after a 90 day 
probation period, depending on performance of employee and the findings of the City-wide salary study.   
 
Dec 2 – Community Development Coordinator position is posted both internally and externally for 10 business 
days, with closing date of December 16 at 4:30 p.m.  With the help of Laura Staples, Shelley will begin working 
some at the Public Works department, while continuing to help out with Community Development until that 
position is filled.  During this time Shelley will work to develop a training program for the new Community 
Development Coordinator hire. 
 
Dec 19 – Interviews commence for Community Development Coordinator. 
 
Dec 21 – Offer is made to candidate for Community Development Coordinator position. 
 
Jan 2 – City-wide salary study is complete and it is reviewed by committee. 
 
Jan 12 – Community Development Coordinator begins training.  Shelley will continue training in her new 
position at public works, but will work with Community Development department to train new Community 
Development Coordinator.  It is anticipated that Shelley will spend alternate days with the new Community 
Development Coordinator during the training period.  Laura Staples will provide additional back-up assistance 
during the training period. 
 
Jan 19 – Council makes decision on wages for Public Works Administrative Coordinator position and makes 
that pay retro to December 2, when the position began.  If at this time Council sees fit to make an adjustment 
to the Community Development Coordinator position, then that would be approved to begin after the 90 day 
probation period, if the department head felt performance justified that adjustment.  
 
Jan 30 – Community Development Coordinator completes estimated two weeks of training with Shelley.  
Anticipated that Shelley will be full-time as the Public Works Administrative Coordinator and the Community 
Development Coordinator will be able to perform job duties independently.  Shelley may be available to 
answer questions occasionally on an as-needed basis. 

Page 2 of 2 



 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
Department: Community Development Salary: TBD 
Title: Community Development Coordinator Date: December 1, 2016 
FLSA: Non-Exempt Reports to: Community Dev Director 
Residency Req: Must live within 30 minutes response time to Norwalk 

 
 
Job Function:   
Under general supervision of the Community Development Director, performs job duties associated 
with the administrative and financial records of the building, planning and economic development 
services.  A working knowledge of building project software, the ability to plan and organize a 
comprehensive and ongoing review including the coordination of building permits, billing, scheduling 
and coordinating Community Development operations.   
 
Equipment Used:  
General office equipment. 
 
Duties and Responsibilities:  

• Prepare, enter, receipt and keep updated building permits and inspections for the financial 
administration of the city and for the building and development community. 

• Coordinate work related activities associated with the community development and financial 
administration of the city as required by policy or ordinances of the city or state. 

• Schedule and organize all inspections for building inspector and building official. 
• Monitor and record in software all activities associated with building inspections for internal and 

external review and coordinate with municipal cash flow and financial status. 
• Coordinate activities leading up to the preparation of timely deposits and backup receipting and 

related activities to the permit process. 
• Complete all necessary account posting and reconciliations to keep the system updated and in 

compliance with auditing comments and development of audit trails. 
• Receive in person or other forms of communication inquiries and complaints related to the 

building and development; be able to respond to the customer or refer to the appropriate staff 
person, all such activities based on current State of Iowa policies or ordinances. 

• Complete all necessary administrative community development duties in an efficient and timely 
manner. 

• Prepare financial, statistical or other operational reports when assigned or directed and assists 
various city officials in data collection for projects. 

• Knowledgeable of various city and state codes and general office operations and work to gain 
knowledge of other city data processing programming. 

• Serve as secretary to the Planning & Zoning Commission, Board of Adjustment and Construction 
Board of Appeals and assist as needed to fill in for other city boards and commissions. 

f:\city council\agenda statements\2016 agenda statements\120116\consent\6f - community development coordinator job description 11-21-
16.docx 

Page 1 of 3 



• Telephone support; customer service at that counter, addressing citizen inquiries, comments or 
complaints; communicate with citizens and other employees personally, over the telephone or 
in writing. 

• Attend workshops and seminars as approved to further develop knowledge, skills and abilities. 
• Comply with all safety rules and attend safety training as directed.  
• Coordinates purchases of most City departments including office supplies, City shirts, and any 

other items necessary. 
• Performs related office support tasks to community development department and other 

departments during absences of regular support staff or as assigned; utilize cross training to 
assist in this support.  Perform other duties as apparent or assigned. 

 
Entry Requirements and Skills:   
Graduation from high school or GED equivalency and six years of general office experience involving the 
keeping of accounting and inspection records, public contact and office equipment operation.  College 
course work may be substituted for experience and an Associate’s Degree is strongly preferred. 
 
Must have the ability to acquire and maintain an Iowa Driver’s License and a good driving record.  The 
successful applicant must have the ability to be bonded and be available for off-hour work assignments, 
meetings and activities. 
 
Working Conditions:   
Works indoors in an office setting. 
 
Physical Requirements/Essential Functions: 
• Must be insurable. 
• Must be sighted. 
• Must be able to hear normal conversation. 
• Ability to read, speak, write and understand English to effectively communicate with citizens, City 

Manager, elected officials and employees by telephone, in written form or face to face. 
• Must be able to operate computer keyboard, calculator, telephone and similar office machines. 
• Must be able to use office software technology including spreadsheet and word programs. 
• Ability to perform mathematics necessary for accounting and bookkeeping. 
 
LICENSES AND CERTIFICATES 
• Valid Iowa driver’s license. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
I have carefully read and understand the contents of this job description. I understand the 
responsibilities, requirements and duties expected of me. I understand that this is not necessarily an 
exhaustive list of responsibilities, skills, duties, requirements, efforts or working conditions associated 
with the job. While this list is intended to be an accurate reflection of the current job, the Employer 
reserves the right to revise the functions and duties of the job or to require that additional or different 
tasks be performed as directed by the Employer. I understand that I may be required to work overtime, 
different shifts or hours outside the normally defined workday or workweek. I also understand that this 
job description does not constitute a contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. 
I have the right to terminate my employment at anytime and for any reason, and the Employer has a 
similar right.  
 
 

f:\city council\agenda statements\2016 agenda statements\120116\consent\6f - community development coordinator job description 11-21-
16.docx 

Page 2 of 3 



 
        
Employee’s Signature Date Department Head Date 
 
 
The City of Norwalk is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the city will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with 
disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential 
accommodations with the Employer.  

f:\city council\agenda statements\2016 agenda statements\120116\consent\6f - community development coordinator job description 11-21-
16.docx 

Page 3 of 3 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO 
 

Resolution adopting position description for the Community Development 
Coordinator position 

 
WHEREAS, the City has employees who render valuable services in performing their 

duties; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City strives to maintain a workforce of knowledgeable, well-trained and 

motivated individuals; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to continue to provide superior municipal services to its 

residents, businesses and visitors; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a position description and an updated pay scale are necessary for various 

positions to maintain the City’s workforce; and,  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the city of Norwalk, 
Iowa, that  

 
Section 1:  the Community Development Coordinator position description be adopted 

and placed on file with the City Clerk. 
 
Passed and approved this 1st day of December, 2016. 

 
 
 
Tom Phillips, Mayor  ATTEST: Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk 
   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Aye  Nay  Abstain  Absent 
Isley        
Kuhl        
Lester        
Livingston        
Riva        
 

Page 1 of 1 



 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
 
 

Item: 6f 
For Meeting of   12-1-2016   

 
ITEM TITLE: Public Works Coordinator Job Description   
CONTACT PERSON: Luke Nelson   

 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION & HISTORY: 
Over the past couple months our Policy/Administration Committee (Livingston, Isley, Phillips) and I have 
discussed some organizational modifications. The most recent was a movement toward a dedicated Economic 
Development Director while delaying the placement of a Community Development Director. During those 
discussions we also recognized the growing needs of administrative support work in Public Works. Norwalk 
has a Public Works Director that oversees Public Works, Water and Sewer operations. In some communities 
there may be two and possibly three people filling these roles. While a single Department Head makes sense 
for a small community it is more difficult to make it work in a growing metro community. A way to be efficient 
and fiscally responsible is to get the most use out of our current staff that is capable of handling the growing 
complexity of operations. Our suggest solution is an added position in Public Works that is identified as an 
Administrative Coordinator. 

 
Attached to this agenda statement is the job description along with a resolution adopting the job description 
and placing Shelley Stravers to that position. Shelley’s wages will remain the same until the wage study is 
complete. At that time Council will consider any modifications for the wages and back date to the appropriate 
time when Shelley moves to the position officially (expected December 2, 2016). 

 
FUNDING: 
We have not yet identified the specific wage range due to the ongoing wage study being performed currently. 
Tim Hoskins has reviewed his budget and identified an ability to accommodate this position. As noted above, 
the wages for Shelley will remain the same until the wage study is complete. Any adjustments would be back- 
dated to December 2, 2016. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Approve the resolution adopting the attached job description. 
2. Take no action at this time. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
As Norwalk grows so too do the demands for a variety of departments. Public Works has had administrative 
support in the past yet there is currently no position existing. As projects become more complex and as 
projects grow in number we must be adapting our organization to meet the needs of citizens, developers and 
taxpayers. The creation of this administrative support position will help improve project management and 
overall organization of Public Works. Staff recommends Alternative 1. 

 
 

Page 1 of 1 



 
Job Description  

 
         
Department: Public Works     Salary: TBD   
Title:  Administrative Coordinator    Date: 12/01/2016  
FLSA: Non-Exempt      Reports to: Public Works Director 
Residency Requirement: Must live within 30 minutes response time area 
   
 
 
Job Function:   
Under general supervision of the Public Works Director, performs various administrative tasks 
related to all divisions of the Public Works Department.   
 
Equipment Used:  
General office equipment. 
 
Duties and Responsibilities:   

• Assists administrating, tracking, record keeping and generating reports on Capital 
Improvement Projects and maintains records of past projects. 

• Prepares correspondence, minutes, reports, specifications, contracts, notices, 
resolutions and other related materials as requested. 

• Prepares budget worksheets and reports for annual budget, accounts payable, accounts 
receivable and payroll for processing. 

• Assists in the preparation of City Council agenda items. 
• Coordinates and organizes special events. 
• Schedules quarterly random and post-accident drug testing. 
• Maintains and updates security system for the building 
• Maintains fleet maintenance including administrator responsibilities, data entry, 

reporting and billing. 
• Coordinates with Information Technology on all IT issues and assists in coordinating 

system upgrades for software. 
• Performs other duties or assume other responsibilities as apparent or assigned. 

 
 
 
 

f:\city council\agenda statements\2016 agenda statements\120116\consent\6g - administrative coordinator job description 10-16.docx 
Page 1 of 4 

 



Success Factors: 
• Demonstrate sound time-management skills by effectively or efficiently organizing, 

prioritizing and completing multiple assignments in a timely manner. 
• Display honestly, trustworthiness, dependability, and respectfulness at all times. 
• Safeguard confidential information and use it or disclose it only as expressly authorized 

or specifically required in the course of performing specific job duties. 
• Understand and internalize the importance of seeking resolution to problems and 

concerns by bringing them to the direct attention of supervisor in a timely manner. 
• Development and maintain good relationships with other city departments. 
• Interacts effectively, professionally and tactfully with the general public. 
• Create and participate in a team environment. 
• Contribute to overall City effectiveness by providing critical staff support to task forces 

and by participating, as necessary, in assisting all other teams. 
• Attentive to the City’s standards for customer service, accuracy, quality, efficiency and 

all City policies and procedures ensuring that all work performed meets those standards. 
 
 
Entry Requirements and Skills: 

• Associate’s Degree or certification in business or related field and/or 5+ years formal 
training in administration.  

• Minimum of 3 years successful experience in a similar position. 
• Public sector experience preferred. 
• Maintain Notary Public certification. 
• Cheerful and courteous phone skills as well as good customer service and 

communication skills. 
• Proficient in Microsoft Office Suite and related software. 
• Confident in the use of computers and tablets and able to be trained in software 

required to complete the functions of the position. 
 

Working Conditions:   
• Climate controlled office with hazards typical to that environment; minimal outdoor 

work is required. 
• Position requires travel within and outside of the City which imposes common travel 

hazards. 
• Standard work hours will be Monday – Friday, 8:00 AM – 4:30 PM 

 
 

f:\city council\agenda statements\2016 agenda statements\120116\consent\6g - administrative coordinator job description 10-16.docx 
Page 2 of 4 

 



Physical Requirements/Essential Functions: 
• Must be insurable. 
• Must be sighted. 
• Must be able to hear normal conversation. 
• Ability to read, speak, write and understand English to effectively communicate with 

businesses, citizens, City Manager, elected officials and employees by telephone, in 
written form or face to face. 

• Must be able to operate computer keyboard, calculator, telephone and similar office 
machines. 

• Must be able to use office software technology including spreadsheet and word 
programs. 

• Able to function productively in a standard office environment accessing cabinets, 
shelving, work areas and office equipment. 

• Able to sit for long periods of time and to maintain focus on project such as 
computer screen. 

• Able to lift, carry, push and pull up to 20 pounds occasionally. 
 
  

f:\city council\agenda statements\2016 agenda statements\120116\consent\6g - administrative coordinator job description 10-16.docx 
Page 3 of 4 

 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
I have carefully read and understand the contents of this job description. I understand the 
responsibilities, requirements and duties expected of me. I understand that this is not 
necessarily an exhaustive list of responsibilities, skills, duties, requirements, efforts or working 
conditions associated with the job. While this list is intended to be an accurate reflection of the 
current job, the Employer reserves the right to revise the functions and duties of the job or to 
require that additional or different tasks be performed as directed by the Employer. I 
understand that I may be required to work overtime, different shifts or hours outside the 
normally defined workday or workweek. I also understand that this job description does not 
constitute a contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. I have the right 
to terminate my employment at anytime and for any reason, and the Employer has a similar 
right.  
 

 

 

        

Employee’s Signature Date Department Head Date 

 

 

The City of Norwalk is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the city will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with 
disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential 
accommodations with the Employer. 
 

f:\city council\agenda statements\2016 agenda statements\120116\consent\6g - administrative coordinator job description 10-16.docx 
Page 4 of 4 

 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO 
 

Resolution adopting position description for the Public Works Administrative 
Coordinator position and placing Shelley Stravers in that position 

 
WHEREAS, the City has employees who render valuable services in performing their 

duties; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City strives to maintain a workforce of knowledgeable, well-trained and 

motivated individuals; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to continue to provide superior municipal services to its 

residents, businesses and visitors; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a position description and an updated pay scale are necessary for various 

positions to maintain the City’s workforce; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City currently employees Shelley Stravers as Administrative Coordinator 

in the Community Development Department; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City has the ability to organize staff and departmental structure in such 

a way that places staff in roles where the most benefit can be provided to carry out city services; 
and,  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the city of Norwalk, 
Iowa, that  

 
Section 1:  the Public Works Administrative Coordinator position description be adopted 

and placed on file with the City Clerk. 
 
Section 2:  Shelley Stavers is named Public Works Administrative Coordinator.  Wages 

shall remain the same until completion of the wage study at such time the City will consider 
modifications of Shelley Stravers wages and make retroactive to December 2, 2016. 

 
Passed and approved this 1st day of December, 2016. 

 
 

Tom Phillips, Mayor  ATTEST: 
Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk 

   
ROLL CALL VOTE: Aye  Nay  Abstain  Absent 
Isley        
Kuhl        
Lester        
Livingston        
Riva        
 

Page 1 of 1 



 

 
 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

Item: 6g  
For Meeting of 
12.01.2016 

 

ITEM TITLE:  General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Jean Furler, Finance Director 
 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: The city council approved issuance of the General Obligation Bonds, 
Series 2017 (NTE $7,200,000) on November 3, 2016. The attached resolution approves the loan 
agreement with UMB bank in the amount of $6,925,000. The actual interest rate will be available 
December 1 at the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 

    X    Resolution Ordinance Contract Other (Specify)    
 

Funding Source:    
 

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL    
 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve resolution approving bond purchase agreement with UMB 
Bank. 



Norwalk / 443891-51 / Auth BPA GO CP LA 

MINUTES FOR MEETING TO AUTHORIZE 
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

443891-51 

Norwalk, Iowa 

December 1, 2016 

The City Council of the City of Norwalk, Iowa, met on December 1, 2016, at _________ 
o’clock __.m., at the ____________________, Norwalk, Iowa. 

The meeting was called to order by the Mayor, and the roll was called showing the 
following members of the City Council present and absent: 

Present:      

Absent:   . 

Council Member _________________________ introduced the following resolution and 
moved its adoption, seconded by Council Member __________________________.  The Mayor 
put the question upon the adoption of said resolution, and the roll being called, the following 
Council Members voted: 

Ayes:      

Nays:    

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted, as hereinafter set out. 

  

-1- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 



Norwalk / 443891-51 / Auth BPA GO CP LA 

RESOLUTION NO.  

Resolution approving a Bond Purchase Agreement  

for the sale of bonds thereunder 

WHEREAS, the City of Norwalk (the “City”), in Warren County, State of Iowa, heretofore 
proposed to enter into a General Obligation Corporate Purpose Loan Agreement (the “Loan 
Agreement”), pursuant to the provisions of Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa, and to borrow 
money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $7,200,000 for the purpose of paying the 
costs, to that extent, of constructing street, water system, sanitary sewer system and storm 
water drainage system improvements, installing street lighting and signalization improvements 
and acquiring a fire truck for use by the municipal fire department, and pursuant to law and duly 
published notice has held a public hearing on such proposal on November 3, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, a Preliminary Official Statement (the “P.O.S.”) has been prepared to 
facilitate the sale of $6,925,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017A 
(the “Bonds”) in evidence of the obligation of the City under the Loan Agreement, and it is now 
necessary to make provision for the approval of the P.O.S. and to authorize its use by UMB 
Bank, n.a. (the “Underwriter”); and  

WHEREAS, a certain Bond Purchase Agreement has been prepared to set forth the 
terms of the Bonds and the understanding between the City and the Underwriter with respect to 
the purchase thereof, and it is now necessary to make provision for the approval of the Bond 
Purchase Agreement;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Resolved by the City Council of the City of Norwalk, Iowa, as 
follows: 

Section 1. The Bond Purchase Agreement is hereby approved in substantially the 
form as presented to this City Council.  The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and 
directed to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase Agreement to the Underwriter. 

Section 2. Further action with respect to the issuance of the Bonds and the approval 
of the Loan Agreement is hereby adjourned to the City Council meeting on December 15, 2016. 

Section 3. All resolutions and orders or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of 
this resolution, to the extent of such conflict, are hereby repealed. 

  

-2- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 



Norwalk / 443891-51 / Auth BPA GO CP LA 

Section 4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval, as provided by law. 

Passed and approved December 1, 2016. 

  
Mayor 

Attest: 

  
City Clerk 

 

• • • • 

At the conclusion of the meeting and upon motion and vote, the City Council adjourned. 

  
Mayor 

Attest: 

  
City Clerk 

  

-3- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 



Norwalk / 443891-51 / Auth BPA GO CP LA 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE: 

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF WARREN SS: 
CITY OF NORWALK 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of Norwalk, do hereby certify that as such I 
have in my possession or have access to the complete corporate records of the City and of its 
Council and officers and that I have carefully compared the transcript hereto attached with those 
corporate records and that the transcript hereto attached is a true, correct and complete copy of 
all the corporate records relating to the City Council’s approval of a bond purchase agreement, 
and that the transcript hereto attached contains a true, correct and complete statement of all the 
measures adopted and proceedings, acts and things had, done and performed up to the present 
time with respect thereto. 

WITNESS MY HAND this _____ day of _____________________, 2016. 

  
City Clerk

-4- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 



 

 
 
November 21, 2016 
 
 
Via Email 
Jodi Eddleman 
City Clerk/City Hall 
Norwalk, Iowa 

 
Re: General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017A 
 Our File No. 443891-51 

Dear Jodi: 

We have prepared and attach proceedings related to the action to be taken for the 
approval of a bond purchase agreement with UMB Bank at the December 1st City Council 
meeting. 

 
The proceedings attached include the following items: 

1. Minutes of the meeting, followed by the resolution providing for the approval of a 
bond purchase agreement with UMB Bank. 

2. Attestation Certificate with respect to the validity of the transcript. 

Please take the time to review the proposed Bond Purchase Agreement and contact me 
to discuss as needed.  Please forward a copy of the contract to me for our files. 

As these proceedings are completed, please return one fully executed copy to our office. 

If you have any questions, please contact Emily Hammond or me. 

Best regards, 

John P. Danos 

Attachments 

cc: Jean Furler 
 Luke Nelson 
 Susanne Gerlach 
 Chip Schultz 
 Dianna VanVleet 

 



Bond Purchase Agreement 

$6,925,000 
City of Norwalk, Iowa 

General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017A 
 

December 1, 2016 

City of Norwalk, Iowa 
705 North Avenue 
Norwalk, IA 50211-1417 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The undersigned, UMB Bank, n.a. (the “Underwriter”), hereby agrees with you, the City of 
Norwalk, Iowa (the “Issuer”), as follows: 

1. Issuance and Sale of the Bonds. Subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth 
in this Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) and on the basis of the 
representations and warranties herein contained, the Issuer agrees to issue and sell to the Underwriter, and 
the Underwriter agrees to purchase from the Issuer, all, but not less than all, of $6,925,000 aggregate 
principal amount of the City of Norwalk, Iowa General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 
2017A (the “Bonds”).  The purchase price for the Bonds shall be $_____________ (representing the par 
amount of the Bonds, less Underwriter’s Discount of $__________ plus the reoffering premium 
$__________).  

The Bonds will be dated as of the Closing Date (defined herein), will mature as set forth 
in Schedule I hereto in the amounts therein specified and will bear interest at the rates set forth therein 
and be subject to redemption as set forth in the Official Statement (herein defined).  The proceeds of the 
Bonds will be used for the purposes set forth in the Official Statement. 

The Bonds will be issued and secured under the Bond Issuance Resolution adopted by the Issuer 
on December 15, 2016 (the “Resolution”), and as described in the Official Statement.  Pursuant to the 
Resolution, the Issuer will appoint the Bankers Trust Company, Des Moines, Iowa, as the Registrar and 
Paying Agent for the Bonds. 

In other respects, the Bonds and the other instruments referred to above will contain the 
provisions summarized in the Preliminary Official Statement dated November ____, 2016 (the 
“Preliminary Official Statement”) and the Official Statement, dated _______________, 2016, to be 
delivered pursuant to Section 7 hereof (collectively, the “Official Statement”).  The Issuer deems the 
Official Statement to be final as of the date hereof for the purposes of Rule 15c2-12 (“Rule 15c2-12”) 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the Issuer hereby consents to the 
circulation by the Underwriter of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement. 

 2. Offering.  The Underwriter represents that (a) it has been duly authorized to execute this 
Bond Purchase Agreement and to act hereunder, with full authority to take such action as it may deem 
advisable with respect to all matters pertaining to this Bond Purchase Agreement; and (b) it hereby 
represents to the Issuer that it is registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as a municipal 



securities dealer. The Underwriter agrees to make a bona fide public offering of all the Bonds at the initial 
public offering prices or yields as set forth in the Official Statement. 
 
 In the event that the Underwriter fails (other than for a reason permitted hereunder) to accept and 
pay for the principal amount of the Bonds at the Closing, the amount of one percent (1%) of the principal 
amount of the Bonds shall be full liquidated damages for such failure and for any and all defaults 
hereunder on the part of the Underwriter, and such amount shall constitute a full release and discharge of 
all claims and rights of the Issuer against the Underwriter. 

3. Delivery and Payment for the Bonds.  At or before 1:00 P.M., central time, on January 3, 
2017 or such other date as may be agreed to by the Issuer and the Underwriter (the “Closing Date”), the 
Issuer will direct the Registrar and Paying Agent to release to The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) in 
New York, New York, in such form as shall be acceptable to DTC, for the account of the Underwriter, the 
Bonds, duly executed and authenticated, together with the other documents hereinafter mentioned; and, 
subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Underwriter will accept such delivery and pay the purchase 
price of the Bonds as set forth in Section 1 hereof by wire transfer to such account as the Issuer shall 
designate. 

Concurrently with such delivery the Issuer shall deliver the certificates, reports and documents 
described herein, together with an opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, Des Moines, Iowa, as Bond 
Counsel (“Bond Counsel”).  Such delivery is referred to herein as the “Closing.” The Bonds will be 
delivered as definitive fully registered Bonds in denominations as provided in the Resolution, registered 
in the name of such DTC nominee and in such amounts as the Underwriter may request. 

4. Representations and Warranties of the Issuer. The Issuer hereby represents and warrants 
to the Underwriter that the representations and warranties of the Issuer set forth in the form of the Closing 
Certificate of the Issuer attached hereto as Exhibit A are true and correct as of the date hereof. 

Furthermore, the Issuer acknowledges and agrees that the purchase and sale of the Bonds 
pursuant to this Agreement is an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the Issuer and the 
Underwriter, acting solely as a principal and not as a financial advisor or agent of the Issuer, and that the 
Underwriter does not have a fiduciary duty to the Issuer and has not assumed a financial advisory 
responsibility in favor of the Issuer with respect to the offering of the Bonds or the process leading thereto 
(whether or not the Underwriter, or any affiliate of the Underwriter, has advised or is currently advising 
the Issuer on other matters) or any other obligation to the Issuer except the obligations expressly set forth 
in this Agreement, it being the Issuer’s understanding that a financial advisory relationship shall not be 
deemed to exist when, in the course of acting as an underwriter, a broker, dealer or municipal securities 
dealer, a person renders advice to an issuer, including advice with respect to the structure, timing, terms 
and other similar matters concerning a new issue of municipal securities. 

5. Conditions to Underwriter’s Obligations. The Underwriter shall have the right to cancel 
its obligations hereunder by notifying the Issuer of its election to do so between the date hereof and the 
Closing if at any time hereafter and prior to the Closing any of the following events shall occur: 

(a) Adverse Legislation, Etc. Any legislation, rule or regulation shall be enacted or 
favorably reported out of committee to any governmental body, department or agency of the 
United States of America or any State thereof, or a decision shall be rendered by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, any of which, in the judgment of the Underwriter, has the purpose or 
effect of: 

2 
 

 



(i) imposing federal income taxes upon the interest payable on the Bonds or 
obligations of the general character of the Bonds;  

(ii) requiring the registration of the Bonds under the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended;  

(iii) changing the federal income tax consequences of any of the transactions 
contemplated in connection herewith; or 

(iv) materially adversely affecting the market price of the Bonds or the 
market price generally of obligations of the general character of the Bonds. 

(b) Adverse Events. The market price of the Bonds, or the market price generally of 
obligations of the general character of the Bonds, is materially adversely affected in the judgment 
of the Underwriter because: 

(i) additional material restrictions or actions regarding monetary affairs not 
in force as of the date hereof shall have been imposed by any national securities exchange 
or governmental authority with respect to trading in securities generally or extensions of 
credit by, or net capital requirements of, underwriters generally;  

(ii) a general banking moratorium shall have been established by federal, 
New York or Iowa authorities; 

(iii) a war or escalation of hostilities involving the United States of America 
shall have been declared or any other national or international calamity shall have 
occurred or escalated; 

(iv) the United States of America shall have defaulted in the payment of 
principal or interest on any obligation of the U.S. Treasury, or any other action shall have 
been taken by any government with respect to its legislative or monetary affairs which, in 
the opinion of the Underwriter, has a material adverse effect on the United States’ 
securities markets or on the market for the Bonds; or 

(v) general political, economic or market conditions shall have occurred 
which, in the opinion of the Underwriter, are not satisfactory to permit the sale of the 
Bonds. 

(c) Material Changes. Any event shall have occurred after the date hereof which 
makes untrue or incorrect in any material respect, any information or statement contained in the 
Official Statement or which is not reflected in the Official Statement but which should, in the 
opinion of the Underwriter, be reflected therein for the purpose for which the Official Statement 
is to be used in order to make the statements and information contained therein not misleading in 
any material respect. 

6. Closing Conditions. The obligations of the Underwriter to accept delivery of the Bonds 
and to make payment therefor on the Closing Date shall be subject to the satisfaction of the following 
conditions on or prior to the Closing Date: 

3 
 

 



(a) Basic Documents. The Resolution and this Bond Purchase Agreement, each in 
the form heretofore approved by the Underwriter or with such further changes as may be 
mutually agreed upon, shall have been executed and delivered. 

(b) Resolutions. There shall have been adopted and be in force and effect such 
Resolutions of the Issuer, substantially in the form set forth as approved by Bond Counsel, 
authorizing the transactions herein contemplated as may be reasonably required by Bond 
Counsel. 

(c) Closing Certificates. The Issuer shall have executed and delivered its Closing 
Certificate, dated the Closing Date, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

(d) Opinion of Bond Counsel.  Bond Counsel shall have rendered its approving 
opinion, substantially in the form set forth in the Official Statement. 

(e) Other Actions and Documents. There shall have been taken such other actions 
and there shall have been delivered such other documents, opinions, showings and certificates not 
listed above, as may be reasonably requested by the Underwriter or Bond Counsel in order to 
effectuate the transactions herein contemplated, and the Underwriter shall have received executed 
counterparts of all documents, certificates and opinions referred to herein. 

7. Official Statement; Compliance with Rule 15c2-12.  (a)  The Issuer hereby ratifies and 
confirms that it has “deemed final” as of its date the Preliminary Official Statement for purposes of 
paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15c2-12 (“Rule 15c2-12”) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
“SEC”), except for the omission of only such material as is permitted by such paragraph. 

 (b) As promptly as practicable after the execution of this Agreement (but not later 
than the earlier of (i) seven business days from the date hereof and (ii) two business days before the date 
of Closing), the Issuer shall prepare and deliver to the Underwriter the final Official Statement executed 
by an authorized officer of the Issuer.  The Official Statement shall be in substantially the same form as 
the Preliminary Official Statement with only such changes as shall be approved by the Underwriter. 

 (c) To enable the Underwriter to comply with Rule 15c2-12 and the rules of the 
MSRB, the Issuer agrees to deliver to the Underwriter (i) as many printed, conformed copies of the 
Official Statement as the Underwriter request and (ii) an electronic copy of the Official Statement in 
word-searchable pdf format.  The Underwriter agrees to file a copy of the Official Statement on the 
MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Markets Access (EMMA) system. 

 (d) The Issuer agrees to notify the Underwriter if, between the date of this 
Agreement and the “end of the underwriting period” under Rule 15c2-12 (a period concluding the final 
date the Underwriter is charged with furnishing copies of the Official Statement to potential customers 
under Rule 15c2-12, but no later than 25 days after the Closing Date), it becomes aware of information or 
event that might cause the Official Statement to be inaccurate or incomplete in any material respect.  At 
the request of the Underwriter, the Issuer will at its own expense supplement the Official Statement to the 
extent necessary to make it accurate and complete in all material respects and in a form approved by the 
Underwriter. 

 (e) The Issuer agrees that it will on or prior to the date of the Closing execute and 
deliver (or adopt as a part of the resolution or ordinance authorizing the Notes) a Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking with respect to the Notes in substantially the form attached as Appendix C to the Official 
Statement. 

4 
 

 



 (f) The Issuer represents and warrants to the Underwriter that, except as described in 
the Official Statement, within the last five years it has not failed to comply in all material respects and is 
in current compliance with each continuing disclosure undertaking previously entered into by it pursuant 
to Rule 15c2-12. 

 (g) To promote compliance with its continuing disclosure undertakings, the Issuer 
has executed a Dissemination Agent Agreement, in the form previously provided to the Underwriter. 

8. Expenses. The Underwriter shall be under no obligation to pay, and the Issuer agrees to 
pay, all reasonable and necessary expenses relating to their obligations hereunder, including but not 
limited to the following: (i) the fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and counsel for the Issuer; (ii) the cost 
of the preparation and printing of the Bonds and the Official Statement, including any supplement or 
amendment thereto; and (iii) expenses incurred by the Underwriter, as may be agreed to and accepted by 
the Issuer. 

The Underwriter agrees to pay: (i) all advertising expenses in connection with the public offering 
of the Bonds; and (ii) all expenses incurred by the Underwriter in connection with its public offering and 
distribution of the Bonds in excess of the amounts paid by the Issuer for such expenses. 

The provisions of this Section 9 shall survive any termination of this Bond Purchase Agreement. 

9. Indemnification. 

(a) Indemnification of Underwriter. The Issuer agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless the Underwriter and each person, if any, who controls the Underwriter within the 
meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or any applicable state securities law, 
against any loss, liability, claim, damage or expense (including the reasonable cost of 
investigating and defending against any claim therefor and counsel fees incurred in connection 
therewith), joint or several, which may be based upon any statute or at common law, (i) as a result 
of the failure of the Issuer to obtain any requisite order, approval or authorization of any public 
body in connection with the issue and sale of the Bonds to the Underwriter, or (ii) on the ground 
that the Official Statement, as the same may be amended, includes an untrue statement of a 
material fact or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to 
make the statements therein not misleading.  In no case is the Issuer to be liable with respect to 
any claim made against the Underwriter or any such controlling person unless the Underwriter or 
such controlling person shall have notified the Issuer in writing promptly after the summons or 
other first legal process giving information of the nature of the claim shall have been served upon 
the Underwriter or such controlling person, but the failure to notify the Issuer of any such claim 
shall not relieve it from any liability which it may have to the person against whom such action is 
brought otherwise than on account of the indemnity agreement contained in this paragraph. The 
Issuer will be entitled to participate at its own expense in the defense or, if it so elects, to assume 
the defense of any suit brought to enforce any such liability, in which event such defense shall be 
conducted by counsel chosen by the Issuer and satisfactory to the Underwriter or such controlling 
person. In the event the Issuer elects to assume the defense for such suit and retain such counsel 
and to participate in the defense thereof, the Underwriter or any such controlling person shall 
have the right to employ separate counsel and to participate in the defense thereof, but the fees 
and expenses of such counsel shall not be at the expense of the Issuer unless the employment of 
such counsel has either been specifically authorized by the Issuer or there is a conflict of interest 
which would prevent counsel for the Issuer from representing both the Issuer and the Underwriter 
or any such controlling person. The Issuer shall not be liable to indemnify any person for any 

5 
 

 



settlement of any such suit effected without the consent of the Issuer. The indemnity agreement 
contained in this paragraph shall be in addition to any liability the Issuer may otherwise have. 

(b) Indemnification of Issuer. The Underwriter agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless the Issuer against any loss, liability, claim, damage or expense (including the reasonable 
cost of investigating and defending against any claim therefor and counsel fees incurred in 
connection therewith), joint or several, which may be based upon any statute or at common law, 
on the ground that the Official Statement, as the same may be amended, includes an untrue 
statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or 
necessary in order to make the statements therein not misleading, which information or omission 
in question was supplied or caused by the Underwriter.  In no case is the Underwriter to be liable 
with respect to any claim made against the Issuer unless the Issuer shall have notified the 
Underwriter in writing promptly after the summons or other first legal process giving information 
of the nature of the claim shall have been served upon the Issuer, but the failure to notify the 
Underwriter of any such claim shall not relieve it from any liability which it may have to the 
person against whom such action is brought otherwise than on account of the indemnity 
agreement contained in this paragraph. The Underwriter will be entitled to participate at its own 
expense in the defense or, if it so elects, to assume the defense of any suit brought to enforce any 
such liability, in which event such defense shall be conducted by counsel chosen by the 
Underwriter and satisfactory to the Issuer. In the event the Underwriter elects to assume the 
defense for such suit and retain such counsel and to participate in the defense thereof, the Issuer 
shall have the right to employ separate counsel and to participate in the defense thereof, but the 
fees and expenses of such counsel shall not be at the expense of the Underwriter unless the 
employment of such counsel has either been specifically authorized by the Underwriter or there is 
a conflict of interest which would prevent counsel for the Underwriter from representing both the 
Underwriter and the Issuer. The Underwriter shall not be liable to indemnify any person for any 
settlement of any such suit effected without the consent of the Underwriter. The indemnity 
agreement contained in this paragraph shall be in addition to any liability the Underwriter may 
otherwise have. 

10. Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed given 
when personally delivered or sent by telecopy or overnight courier service addressed as follows: 

If to the Issuer: City of Norwalk, Iowa  
      705 North Avenue 
 Norwalk, IA 50211-1417 

   
  Attention:  City Clerk  
  Facsimile:  (515) 981-0228 

If to the Underwriter: UMB Bank, n.a.  
 1010 Grand Boulevard, 2nd Floor 
 Kansas City, Missouri 64106 

 Attention: Chip Schultz 
 Facsimile: (816) 860-4829 

12. Counterparts. This Bond Purchase Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original but all together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

6 
 

 



13. Contract for Benefit of Parties. This Bond Purchase Agreement is made solely for the 
benefit of the parties hereto (including any successor or assignee of the Underwriter), and no other person 
shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. 

14. Certificate of Underwriter.  On the Closing Date the Underwriter shall deliver its 
Certificate to the Issuer, in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit B hereto. 

15. Governing Law. This Bond Purchase Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Iowa without regard to conflicts of law principles thereof. 

7 
 

 



If the foregoing is acceptable to you, please note your acceptance in the space below, on the date 
hereof, whereupon this Bond Purchase Agreement shall become a binding contract between us. 

UMB BANK, N.A. 

       By:                                                             
            __________________________ 

 

Accepted and agreed to this 1st day of December at __:__ _.m. 

CITY OF NORWALK, IOWA 

 
By:                                                                 
      Mayor   

 

ATTEST: 

 

By:__________________________________ 
City Clerk    

 

8 
 

 



SCHEDULE I 
 

MATURITY, PRINCIPAL AMOUNT, AND INTEREST RATE 
 
 
 

Maturity Date Principal Interest Rate Price 
2018 $345,000 _____%  _________ 
2019 $410,000 _____%  _________ 
2020 $420,000 _____%  _________ 
2021 $430,000 _____%  _________ 
2022 $440,000 _____%  _________ 
2023 $445,000 _____%  _________ 
2024 $455,000 _____%  _________ 
2025 $465,000 _____%  _________ 
2026 $475,000 _____%  _________ 
2027 $480,000 _____%  _________ 
2028 $490,000 _____%  _________ 
2029 $500,000 _____%  _________ 
2030 $510,000 _____%  _________ 
2031 $525,000 _____%  _________ 
2032 $535,000 _____%  _________ 

    
    

 
 
 
 

I-1 



 

EXHIBIT A 

(FORM OF) 

CLOSING CERTIFICATE 

We, the undersigned Mayor and City Clerk, of the City of Norwalk (the “City”), in 
Warren County, Iowa, do hereby certify that we are now and were at the time of the execution of 
the City’s $____________ General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017A, dated 
__________, 2016 (the “Bonds”), the officers respectively above indicated; and that in 
pursuance of Chapter 384 of the Code of Iowa, a resolution adopted by the City Council on 
________, 2016 (the “Resolution”), and a loan agreement dated as of __________, 2016 (the 
“Loan Agreement”), by and between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., Kansas City, Missouri (the 
“Purchaser”), the Bonds have been heretofore lawfully authorized and this day by us lawfully 
issued and delivered to or upon the direction of the Purchaser and pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement, the City has received $___________, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 
which amount represents the par amount of the Bonds ($___________), plus reoffering premium 
($_________) and minus the underwriter’s discount ($_________).  The Bonds mature on June 1 
in each of the years, in the respective principal amounts and bear interest payable semiannually, 
commencing December 1, 2016, as set forth in the Resolution. 

Each of the Bonds has been executed with the facsimile signatures of the aforesaid 
officers, and the City has authorized and directed that the Bonds be authenticated by Bankers 
Trust Company, Des Moines, Iowa, as the Registrar and Paying Agent (the “Registrar”), and 
registered in the names of the owners on the City’s registration records maintained by the 
Registrar. 

We further certify that the Bonds are being issued to evidence the City’s obligation under 
the Loan Agreement entered into by the City for the purpose of paying the costs, to that extent, 
of constructing street, water system, sanitary sewer system and storm water drainage system 
improvements, installing street lighting and signalization improvements and acquiring a fire 
truck for use by the municipal fire department (the “Projects”).  

We further certify that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or threatened 
involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City, or the titles of the 
aforesaid officers to their respective positions, or the validity of the Bonds, or the power and duty 
of the City to provide and apply adequate taxes for the full and prompt payment of the principal 
of and interest on the Bonds, and that none of the proceedings incident to the authorization and 
issuance of the Bonds have been repealed or rescinded. 

We further certify that no appeal of the decision of the City Council to enter into the 
Loan Agreement or to issue the Bonds has been taken to the district court. 

We further certify that all meetings held in connection with the Bonds were open to the 
public at a place reasonably accessible to the public and that notice was given at least 24 hours 
prior to the commencement of all meetings by advising the news media who requested notice of 
the time, date, place and the tentative agenda and by posting such notice and agenda at the City 
Hall or principal office of the City on a bulletin board or other prominent place which is easily 
 A- 1 



 

accessible to the public and is the place designated for the purpose of posting notices of 
meetings. 

We further certify as follows: 

1. The net sales proceeds of the Bonds are $____________ (the “Net Sales Proceeds”), 
the same being the Issue Price (hereinafter defined) thereof. 

2. The estimated sources and uses of funds in connection with the Bonds are as follows: 

SOURCES    
Par amount of Bonds $__________ 
Reoffering Premium $__________ 
  $__________ 
  
USES    
Costs of Issuance  $__________ 
Underwriter’s Discount $__________ 
Deposit to Project Fund  $__________ 
Additional Proceeds $__________ 
  $__________ 

 
 a. $__________ of the Net Sales Proceeds will be used to pay costs of 
issuance, including the underwriter’s discount, within 45 days of the date hereof, and 
until so applied, will be invested by the City without restriction as to yield. 

 b. $__________ of the of the Net Sales Proceeds (the “Net Sales Proceeds”) 
will be used to pay the costs of the Projects, and the Net Sales Proceeds will be expended 
and invested in accordance with Section 3 hereinafter set forth.  

3. The Net Sales Proceeds, including investment earnings thereon, will be invested 
by the City without restriction as to yield for a period not to exceed three years from the date 
hereof (the “Three Year Temporary Period”), the following three tests being reasonably expected 
to be satisfied by the City: 

(a) Time Test:  The City has entered into or, within six months of the 
date hereof, will enter into binding contracts for the Projects with third parties 
(e.g. engineers or contractors); 

(i) which are not subject to contingencies directly or 
indirectly within the City’s control; 

 A- 2 



 

(ii) which provide for the payment by the City to such 
third parties of an amount equal to at least 5% of the Net Sales 
Proceeds; 

(b) Expenditure Test:  At least 85% of the Net Sales Proceeds will be 
applied to the payment of total costs of the Projects within the Three Year 
Temporary Period; and 

(c) Due Diligence Test:  Acquisition and construction of the Projects 
to completion and application of the Net Sales Proceeds to the payment of total 
costs of the Projects will proceed with due diligence. 

4. The City Council adopted a resolution on October 20, 2016 declaring its official 
intent to acquire and construct the Projects and finance the same with bonds or other obligations 
(the “Intent Resolution”).   

 The City certifies that none of the costs of the Projects to be paid for from the Net Sales 
Proceeds are for expenditures made more than 60 days prior to the date of adoption of the Intent 
Resolution, except for (i) costs of issuance of the Bonds; (ii) costs aggregating an amount not in 
excess of the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the Net Sales Proceeds; (iii) costs for preliminary 
expenditures (including architectural, engineering, surveying, soil testing, and similar costs 
incurred prior to commencement of acquisition or construction of the Projects, other than land 
acquisition, site preparation and similar costs) not in excess of 20% of the Net Sales Proceeds of 
the Bonds; the City will allocate Net Sales Proceeds to reimbursement of such expenditures no 
later than 3 years after the later of (i) the date any such expenditure was originally paid or (ii) the 
date the Projects are placed in service (or abandoned); and such allocations will be made by the 
City in writing. 

 The City will seek reimbursement of prior expenditures already paid by the City 
from the proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of $__________. 

 5. Not more than 50% of the Net Sales Proceeds will be invested in non-purpose 
investments [as defined in Section 148(f)(6)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Code”)] having a substantially guaranteed yield for four years or more (e.g., a 
four-year guaranteed investment contract or a Treasury Obligation that does not mature for four 
years). 

6. The weighted average maturity of the Bonds, ______ years, does not exceed 
120% of the reasonably expected economic life of the Projects. 

7. To our best knowledge and belief, there are no facts, estimates or circumstances 
which would materially change the foregoing conclusions. 

8. On the basis of the foregoing, it is not expected that the Net Sales Proceeds will 
be used in a manner that would cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” under Section 148 of the 
Code and the regulations prescribed under that section.  The City has not been notified of any 
listing or proposed listing of it by the Internal Revenue Service as a bond issuer whose arbitrage 
certifications may not be relied upon. 
 A- 3 



 

 9. We further certify that the City does not currently have outstanding tax exempt 
obligations issued during the current calendar year, including the Bonds, in excess of 
$10,000,000, nor will the City issue additional tax exempt obligations during the current calendar 
year which, when added to the City’s current tax exempt obligations issued during the current 
calendar year, including the Bonds, would exceed $10,000,000. 

 10. We further certify that due provision has been made for the collection of taxes 
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due.  All payments coming due 
before the collection of any such taxes will be paid promptly when due from legally available 
funds. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto affixed our hands, as of __________, 2016. 

 
CITY OF NORWALK, IOWA 
 
By   (DO NOT SIGN)   

Mayor 
Attest: 
 (DO NOT SIGN)   
City Clerk 
 

 

 

 A- 4 



 

 
EXHIBIT B  

(FORM OF) 

CERTIFICATE OF THE UNDERWRITER 

The undersigned officer of UMB Bank, n.a., Kansas City, Missouri (the “Underwriter”), 
hereby certifies as of ____________, 2016 (the “Dated Date”) as follows: 

1. The Underwriter has agreed to purchase from the City of Norwalk, Iowa (the 
“Issuer”) its General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017A in the stated principal 
amount of $_____________ (the “Bonds”), issued pursuant to a resolution adopted by the City 
Council of the Issuer on ______________, 2016 (the “Resolution”). 

 The Underwriter has purchased the Bonds pursuant to a certain bond purchase 
agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) dated __________, 2016 (the “Sale Date”) 
between the Underwriter and the Issuer.  The Bond Purchase Agreement has been duly 
authorized, executed and delivered by the Underwriter and has not been repealed, rescinded or 
amended by the Underwriter. 

2. The Underwriter hereby confirms that the initial offering price at which all of the 
Bonds have been sold to the public (excluding bond houses, placement agents, brokers or similar 
persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) is $___________. 

Furthermore, based upon our records and other information available to us which we 
have no reason to believe is not correct: 

(a) All of the Bonds have been the subject of a bona fide initial offering to the 
public (excluding bond houses, placement agents, brokers or similar persons or 
organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) at the respective prices 
or yields shown on the cover of the Official Statement dated _______________, 2016 (the 
“Official Statement”), plus accrued interest, if any. 

(b) At the time the Underwriter agreed to purchase the Bonds, based upon the 
then prevailing market conditions, we reasonably expected that at least 10% of each 
maturity of the Bonds would be sold to the public (excluding bond houses, placement 
agents, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity as underwriters or 
wholesalers) at the offering prices described above, and the undersigned had no reason to 
believe that any of the Bonds would be initially sold to the public (excluding bond houses, 
placement agents, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity as 
underwriters or wholesalers) at prices greater than the respective prices, or at yields less 
than the respective yields, shown in the Official Statement, plus accrued interest, if any. 

(c) At least 10% of each maturity of the Bonds was sold to the public 
(excluding bond houses, placement agents, brokers or similar persons or organizations 
acting in the capacity as underwriters or wholesalers) at the respective prices or yields 
shown on the cover of the Official Statement, plus accrued interest, if any, except as noted 
on Exhibit A hereto. 

 B-1 



 

3. The Underwriter has not and will not receive any compensation with respect to or 
related to the issuance of the Bonds in excess of the Underwriter’s discount in the amount of 
$_________ from proceeds of the Bonds. 

4. The Underwriter has computed the yield on the Bonds in accordance with Section 
148(h) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), to be _____________%. 

5. The Underwriter has computed the weighted average maturity of the Bonds to be 
_________ years.   

6. Based upon the market trades of the Bonds between the Sale Date and the Dated 
Date, and our knowledge of the conditions generally prevailing in the municipal bond market 
between such dates, we have no reason to believe that our representations and certifications in 
paragraph 2 hereof are incorrect and may not be relied upon by the Issuer and Bond Counsel. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Underwriter has caused this certificate to be executed by 

its duly authorized officer as of the Dated Date. 

UMB BANK, N.A. 
Kansas City, Missouri 

By  (DO NOT SIGN)  
 (Signature) 

___________________________________ 
(Print Name and Title) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 B-2 



 

EXHIBIT A 
UNSOLD MATURITIES 

 
In the event that less than 10% of any particular maturity has been sold to the public by the date 
of closing, please list each such maturity below, indicate the percentage of that maturity 
remaining to be sold to the public and give a brief description of the reason the sale of 10% or 
more of that maturity to the public was not achieved. 
 
Maturity Percentage Unsold Reason for inability to sell at least 10% 
   

 
 

   
 
 

   
 
 

   
 
 

   
 
 

   
 
 

   
 
 

   
 
 

   
 
 

 
 
Please provide contact information for Underwriter’s representative to contact in the event of 
need for further discussion: 
 

Name:  (DO NOT SIGN)   
 
Phone: ___________________________ 
 
Email: ___________________________ 

 B-3 



 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
 
 

Item No.6h 
For Meeting of   12/1/2016   

 
ITEM TITLE: 28E Agreement for Mutual Aid Services (Polk Co.)   
CONTACT PERSON: Ryan Coburn, Fire Chief   

 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION & HISTORY: 
The purpose of this agreement is pursuant to Chapter 28E of the Iowa Code. The purpose of this agreement is 
to provide for Mutual Aid in the event of an emergency within the jurisdiction of the Parties in this Agreement. 
This Agreement is specific to the Agencies in Polk County which includes numerous agencies that would be 
responding in the event that Norwalk Fire Department would have the immediate need for Mutual Aid. 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
As the Fire Chief it would be my recommendation to approve the agreement based upon the changes made 
for the current cycle. The amendments made are specific to compensation as it relates to current FEMA 
applicable standards. This Agreement would be effective January 1, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 



RESOLUTION NO 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 28E AGREEMENT FOR MUTUAL 
ASSISTANCE FOR POLK COUNTY AREA FIRE/RESCUE SERVICES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Norwalk (the “City") desires to enter into this 28E Agreement 
(“Agreement”), the purpose of which is to provide for the Emergency Services of one entity to 
the other in such emergency or needed situations requiring additional, special personnel, and/or 
equipment. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
Norwalk, IOWA: 
 

That the City approves the 28E Agreement for Mutual Assistance for Polk County 
Area Fire/Rescue Services; and the Mayor, is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute said Agreement on behalf of the City. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ day of _________________, 2016. 
 
Tom Phillips, Mayor  ATTEST: Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk 
   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Aye  Nay  Abstain  Absent 
Isley          
Kuhl          
Lester          
Livingston         
Riva          
 
 



 

Page 1 of 5 

28E AGREEMENT FOR MUTUAL ASSISTANCE 

 
for Polk County Area Fire/Rescue Services 

 
 

WHEREAS, the undersigned entities (“Party” or collectively “Parties”)  provide fire/rescue 
services and/or emergency medical services (“Emergency Services”) in Polk County and/or the 
adjoining counties of Boone County, Dallas County, Jasper County, Madison County, Marion 
County, Marshall County, Story County and Warren County (“adjoining counties”); and 
 
WHEREAS, there has been a long standing Mutual Aid Agreement among Polk County 
fire/rescue and emergency medical services and/or other entities to provide mutual aid in Polk 
County and adjoining counties in a time of need;  
 
WHEREAS, the current Mutual Aid Agreement is entitled 28E Agreement for Mutual 
Assistance for Polk County Fire/Rescue Services and is filed with the Iowa Secretary of State at 
10:51 a.m. on June 24, 2015, numbered M508206 (“2015 Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2015 Agreement has been in force for one year and Parties desire to update; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties have a desire to assist each other in time of need; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties each maintain adequate Emergency Services equipment and personnel 
to respond to the normal emergencies occurring within their respective jurisdictions; and 
 
WHEREAS, situations may arise in regard to emergencies or circumstances which exhaust 
available personnel and equipment, or require additional or specialty personnel or additional 
and/or special equipment that the responsible jurisdiction may not have available at any given 
time; and 
 
WHEREAS, to combat such emergency situations, it is desirable for the Parties to render needed 
Emergency Services upon a reciprocal basis; and 
 
WHEREAS, the governing bodies of each party are desirous of entering into this 28E 
Agreement (“Agreement”), the purpose of which is to provide for the Emergency Services of one 
entity to the other in such emergency or needed situations requiring additional, special personnel, 
and/or equipment. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

I. Incorporation of Recitals   

 
The foregoing Recitals are incorporated herein as if fully set forth in this paragraph. 



 

Page 2 of 5 

 
II. Definitions 

 

A. Mutual Aid.  The assistance of Emergency Services personnel and equipment 
provided by one Party (“Providing Entity”) and requested by the other Party 
(“Requesting Entity”) to this Agreement. 

 
 B. Incident Commander.  The person who, by virtue of his/her position with the  
  Requesting Entity, is responsible for the overall command and direction of the  
  Emergency response activities. 
 

C. Emergency.  Any situation where a Party, due to lack of personnel or training, 
special equipment needs or magnitude of event, and based upon actual 
circumstances, concludes that assistance is needed to protect life, stabilize the 
incident, and/or protect property within its jurisdiction.   

 
III. Purpose 

 

 This Agreement is made pursuant to Chapter 28E, Code of Iowa.  The purpose of this 
 Agreement is to provide for Mutual Aid in case of an Emergency arising within the 
 jurisdiction of the Parties to this Agreement. 
 
IV. Request for Assistance 
 

All requests for Mutual Aid in an Emergency shall be made by an Emergency Services 
director or designee of the Requesting Entity.  Such requests shall state the exact nature 
of the Emergency and shall include the amount and type of equipment and the number 
and skills of personnel required, and shall specify the location where the personnel and 
equipment are needed.  The final decision of type and amount of equipment and number 
of personnel to be provided by the Providing Entity to the Requesting Entity shall be at 
the sole discretion of the Providing Entity.  Further, the Providing Entity shall be held 
harmless by the Requesting Entity from liability in connection with its final decision on 
type and amount of equipment and number of personnel to be provided to the Requesting 
Entity. 

 
V. Authority over Joint Operations 

 

 The Incident Commander of the Requesting Entity shall retain overall control of all 
 Emergency response activities.  The ranking supervisor of the Providing Entity shall 
 remain in command of his/her personnel and equipment subject, however, to the direction 
 and control of the Incident Commander. 
 
VI. Liability 

 
 Employees or volunteers of either Party acting pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
 considered as acting under the lawful orders and instructions pertaining to their 



 

Page 3 of 5 

 employment or volunteer status with such Party.  Under no circumstances are employees 
 or volunteers of one Party to be considered employees or volunteers of the other Party. 
 

Each Party waives all claims against the other for compensation for any property loss or 
damage and/or personal injury or death to its personnel as consequence of the 
performance of this Agreement.  Each Party shall bear the liability and/or costs of 
damage to its equipment and facilities, and the compensation of its employees or 
volunteers, including injury or death of its personnel, occurring as a consequence of the 
performance of this Agreement, whether the damages, costs, injury or death occurs at an 
Emergency in the Party’s own jurisdiction or in the jurisdiction of the other Party. 
Nothing in this agreement is intended nor does it waive any right to seek federal or other 
assistance provided for disaster relief. 

 
Except as provided herein, each Party shall be responsible for the acts or omissions of its 
own employees, and shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Other Party, its 
officers, agents and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, debts, 
damages, costs, charges and expenses, including court costs and attorney’s fees arising 
from loss of or damage to private property, and/or the death of or injury to private 
persons, arising from services of response rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  
Provided, however, the Requesting Entity shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
Providing Entity where any suits, actions, debts, damages, costs, charges or expenses 
arise from execution of a specific command or order pursuant to paragraph V of this 
Agreement. 

 
 Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent or limit either Party to this Agreement from 
 recovering or attempting to recover costs of services rendered to a third party where such 
 recovery of costs is provided for by law. 
 
 The Parties to this Agreement do not waive any defenses, immunities or other limitations 
 applicable to a respective party and nothing herein shall be so construed.  Each Party to 
 this Agreement reserves the right to fully defend all claims arising from loss of or 
 damage to private property and/or death of or injury to private persons who are not 
 parties  to this Agreement including, but not limited to asserting defenses of immunities 
 available under applicable law. 
 

This article shall survive the termination of this Agreement where necessary to protect 
each Party to this Agreement. 

 
VII. Compensation 
 

A. Emergency Services.  For Emergency Services, no Party shall be required to 
reimburse any other Party for the cost of providing the services set forth in this 
Agreement, unless the incident lasts twelve hours or longer.  If an incident lasts 
twelve hours or longer, the Providing Entity may seek compensation from the 
Requesting Entity for the cost of providing the services set forth in this Agreement.  

 



 

Page 4 of 5 

All services are billable if the incident lasts a minimum of twelve consecutive hours. 
Services include, but are not limited to: 

a. Personnel (including backfill personnel) 
b. Equipment (at rates defined by FEMA) 
c. Supplies (actual cost incurred, including shipping of replacement supplies)   

Documentation is required in the form of an incident report which clearly lists 
personnel, equipment and supplies used.  Supply usage also requires an actual invoice 
copy. 

 
B. Emergency Medical Services.  The Party transporting a patient from an emergency 

location to a medical facility will be responsible for billing the patient for services 
rendered. 

 
If the Providing Entity provides supplemental services or a higher level of medical 
services than the Requesting Entity, such as paramedic services, the Requesting 
Entity may bill the patient for the supplemental services pursuant to accepted billing 
standards.  In the event the Requesting Entity does not charge for ambulance services, 
the Providing Entity will bill the patient for services rendered and retain one hundred 
percent (100%) of fees collected. 

 
C. Hazardous Materials Services.  The Providing Entity may bill the responsible person 

(as defined by Iowa Administrative Code Sections 133.2 and 133.3) at a hazardous 
substance or condition incident (as defined in Iowa Administrative Code Section 
133.1(2)) to reclaim costs associated with responding to the incident. 

 
VIII. Termination 

 

This Agreement may be terminated with respect to that Party for any reason by any Party 
by giving written notice, by certified mail to the President of the Polk County Fire 
Chief’s Association.  This Agreement shall thereafter terminate, with respect to that Party 
only, sixty (60) days from the date of receipt of termination notice.  Upon termination, 
said terminating Party shall have no further responsibility or obligation or benefits from 
the other Parties to the Agreement, under this Agreement, except as provided herein. 

 
IX. Effective Date 
 

This Agreement shall be in full force and effect at 12:01 a.m., January 1, 2017, by and 
between the Parties who have obtained approval hereof by their respective governing 
bodies.  Prior to January 1, 2017, the President of the Polk County Fire Chief’s 
Association shall have filed this Agreement with the Iowa Secretary of State as required 
by Iowa Code section 28E.9.  This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for an 
indefinite period of time from the effective date hereof until terminated as provided in 
paragraph VII. 

 
  



 

Page 5 of 5 

X. Prior Mutual Assistance Agreements 

 

This Agreement supersedes the 2015 Agreement in full. 
 
XI. Amendments 

 

 This Agreement represents the entire Agreement of the Parties.  Any amendments must 
 be in writing, approved by the governing body of all Parties, and executed by the 
 authorized representatives of all Parties.  Any and all amendments must comply with the 
 provisions of Iowa Code section 28E.8.  Any and all such requirements shall be done by 
 the then presiding President of the Polk County Fire Chief’s Association or President’s 
 designee. 
 
XII. Validity 
 
 In the event any part or paragraph of this Agreement is declared void as being contrary to 
 Iowa law, the remaining portions of this Agreement that are valid shall continue in full 
 force and effect. 
 
XIII. No Separate Entity Created -- Administration 
 
 It is the Intent of the Parties not to create a separate legal entity or administrative agency 
 under this Agreement.  The then presiding President of the Polk County Fire Chief’s 
 Association shall serve as Administrator of this undertaking. 
 
XIV. No Real or Personal Property 

 

 No real or personal property will be acquired, held or disposed of during this undertaking 
 as no separate entity has been created. 
 
XV. Applicable Law   

 
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Iowa (excluding conflicts of laws rules), and applicable federal law. 

  
XVI. Counterparts  

 
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

 
 
 
 



28E AGREEMENT FOR MUTUAL ASSISTANCE 
for Polk County Area Fire/Rescue Services 

 

    

 
 
 
 
By authorized signature of this Agreement, Parties agree to the 28E Agreement for Mutual 
Assistance for Polk County Area Fire/Rescue Services. 
 
 
 
 
Effective Date: January 1, 2017 

Legal Name of Jurisdiction:  
 
 
 
 
   
Jurisdiction Official  Dated 
 
 
 
 

  

Attest  Dated 
 
 
 
 

  

Chief/Director  Dated 
 



28E AGREEMENT FOR MUTUAL ASSISTANCE 
for Polk County Area Fire/Rescue Services 

 
 
 
 
 
By authorized signature of this Agreement, Parties agree to the 28E Agreement for Mutual 
Assistance for Polk County Area Fire/Rescue Services. 
 
 
 
 
Effective Date: January 1, 2017 

Legal Name of Jurisdiction:  
 
 
 
 
   
Jurisdiction Official  Dated 
 
 
 
 

  

Attest  Dated 
 
 
 
 

  

Chief/Director  Dated 
 

    



 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 

Item No- 6i 
 

For Meeting of 12/1/2016 
 

ITEM TITLE: Approval of bid for Fire Panel upgrade for Public Safety Building. 

CONTACT PERSON(S): Ryan Coburn, Fire Chief 

 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION 

 
This resolution will award contract to Midwest Alarms Systems of 720 E. 2nd St Des Moines IA. 
for the upgrade and purchase of hardware for the Fire Detection System. This upgrade will 
bring the Norwalk Public  Safety Building up to current Fire Code Standards, and replace 
outdated technology. This will also provide fire detection to the newly renovated crew quarters 
on the second floor of the building.  Awarding cost for the price to hardware and design to total 
$11,584.00 

 
 
 
 
 

  X  Resolution Ordinance Contract Other (Specify)   
 

Funding Source     
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL    

City Manager 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: By motion and roll call vote, approve the resolution 
authorizing the appointment and agreement. 

 
COUNCIL ACTION: 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION Approving the bid award and contract between 
the City of Norwalk and Midwest Alarm Services. 

 

 
 

WHEREAS, City of Norwalk requested bids for the upgrade and replacement of 
the Fire Detection System for the Norwalk Public Safety Building located at 1100 
Chatham Ave. 

 
WHEREAS, the total contract price for the upgrade and hardware of the 

Fire Detection System shall be $11,584.00 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Norwalk, 
Iowa, does hereby authorize a contract between the City of Norwalk and Midwest Alarm 
Systems for project completion. 

 

 
 

Passed and approved 1 December 2016 
 

 
 

Tom Phillips, Mayor ATTEST: Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk 
 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Isley     
Kuhl     
Lester     
Livingston     
Riva     

 



  
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Item No- 6j 
 

                                                                                          For Meeting of  12/1/2016 
  

ITEM TITLE: Approval of bid for Fire Panel installation for Public Safety Building. 
  
CONTACT PERSON(S):    Ryan Coburn, Fire Chief  
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION 
  
This resolution will award contract to NAI Electrical Contractors of 728 E. Lincoln Way, Ames IA. 
for the installation of the Fire Detection System.  This upgrade will bring the Norwalk Public 
Safety Building up to current Fire Code Standards, and replace outdated technology.  This will 
also provide fire detection to the newly renovated crew quarters on the second floor of the 
building.  Awarding cost for the price of installation to total $13,110.00 

   
 
 
 
     X   Resolution            Ordinance          Contract      Other (Specify)    
 
Funding Source           
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL       
       City Manager 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: By motion and roll call vote, approve the resolution 
authorizing the appointment and agreement. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION: 
 

  
  
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO 
Approving the bid award and contract  

between the City of Norwalk and NAI Electrical Contractors. 
  
  

            WHEREAS, City of Norwalk requested bids for the upgrade and replacement of 
the Fire Detection System for the Norwalk Public Safety Building located at 1100 
Chatham Ave.  
 
                      WHEREAS, the total contract price for the installation of the Fire Detection 
System shall be $13,110.00 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Norwalk, 
Iowa, does hereby authorize a contract between the City of Norwalk and NAI Electrical 
Contractors for project completion.   
 
  
            Passed and approved 1 December 2016 
  
Tom Phillips, Mayor    ATTEST: Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk 
   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Aye  Nay  Abstain  Absent 
Isley          
Kuhl          
Lester          
Livingston         
Riva          
 
                                                                         
  
                                                       
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 Item No. 8 
 For Meeting of 12.01.2016 
   

ITEM TITLE: Public hearing and consideration of the first reading, and potentially the second 
and third reading, of an amendment to the City’s Zoning Ordinance to update 
the Sign Regulations 

CONTACT 
PERSON: 

Luke Parris 

   
SUMMARY EXPLANATION & HISTORY:  
On October 20, 2016, Pastor Trey Perrott, with the First Baptist Church of Norwalk, attended the City Council 
meeting and requested that the City consider allowing electronic message display signs.  The City Zoning 
Ordinance do not currently allow these types of signs, though several do exist in the community.  After 
discussion with Council Members and Planning and Zoning Commissioners, staff worked to prepare an update 
to the Zoning Ordinance to allow for electronic display messages.  Staff has also taken this opportunity to 
prepare changes to a few other areas of the sign regulations. 
 
Below is a summary of the proposed changes: 
 

• Prohibit pole signs in all zoning districts. 
• Modify architectural standards for free standing signs.  Now require use of class 1 and class 2 materials 

in construction of monument signs. 
• Remove the need for Council approval of temporary sign permits. 
• Clarify the rules for billboards 

o Current sign regulations do not provide guidance on setback and height for billboards 
• Allow and set rules for electronic message signs: 

o Only as part of a monument sign.  Counts towards sign area. 
o Only text, no video allowed. 
o Only LED lights, no TVs or screens. 
o Message displayed for 8 seconds, switch in less than 1 second. 
o Lights can’t disturb motorists or cause a glare 

 
PLANNING & ZONING RECOMMENDATION:   
The Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed amendment at their meeting on 
November 14, 2016.  The Commission recommends that the Council approve the proposed amendment of the 
sign regulations as shown in the attached Exhibit A. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Approve the amendment to the Sign Regulations as recommended by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 

2. Propose and approve the amendment to the Sign Regulations with additional changes. 
3. Take no action at this time. 

  

Page 1 of 2 



ORDINANCE NO  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SIGN REGULATIONS SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORWALK, IOWA: 
 
 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE.  The purpose of this ordinance is to amend Chapter 17.70 Sign Regulations of the 
City of Norwalk Zoning Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2. AMENDMENT.  The City of Norwalk Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended with the following: 
 

1. Chapter 17.70 Sign Regulations is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part thereof by reference. 
 

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  In any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any 
section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval 
and publication as provided by law. 
 
Passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Norwalk, Iowa on the ____ day of _________, 2016. 
 
     
Tom Phillips, Mayor      ATTEST: Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk 
    
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Aye  Nay  Abstain  Absent 
Isley           
Kuhl           
Lester           
Livingston          
Riva           

Page 2 of 2 



  
CHAPTER 17.70 

 
SIGN REGULATIONS 

 
 
Sections: 
 
17.70.000 Sign Regulations 
17.70.010 Statement of Intent 
17.70.020 General Prohibitions 
17.70.030 Prohibited Signs 
17.70.040 Exemptions 
17.70.050 On-Premise Sign Regulations 
17.70.060 Freestanding Identification Signs 
17.70.070 Free Standing Bulletin Boards or Directory Signs 
17.70.080 Building Signs 
17.70.090 Billboards; Off-premise Advertising 
17.70.100 Projecting Signs 
17.70.110 Marquees, Awnings and Canopy Signs 
17.70.120 Directional Signs 
17.70.130 Temporary Signs 
17.70.135  Electronic Message Display 
17.70.140 Permits and Fees 
17.70.150 Inspection 
17.70.160 Unsafe and Unlawful Signs 
17.70.170 Painting Required 
17.70.180 Wind Pressure and Dead Load Requirements 
17.70.190 Removal of Obsolete Signs 
17.70.200 Maintenance 
17.70.210 Signs not to constitute a  Traffic Hazard 
17.70.220 Signs Extending Over City Property 
17.70.230 Non-Conforming Signs 
17.70.240 Revocation of Permits 
17.70.250 Jurisdiction of Norwalk Board of Adjustment 
17.70.260 Jurisdiction of Norwalk Board of Appeals 
17.70.270 Violation -- Penalty 
 
 
17.70.000  Sign Regulations.  This Chapter shall be know and may be cited and referred to as the 
"Sign Ordinance" of the City of Norwalk, Iowa, and shall apply to all properties within the City of 
Norwalk. 
 
17.70.010  Statement of Intent.  In the interest of promoting the general welfare and public safety 
of the city and recognizing the city should be aesthetically attractive as well as financially 
prosperous, the City of Norwalk desires to regulate signs in such a way as to establish a 
compatibility of sign usage with the land use patterns and standards for the zoning district, and 
to permit such signs which will not, by reason of their size, location, construction or manner of 
display cause an annoyance or disturbance to citizens, detract from the community's aesthetic 
attractiveness,  create a hazard, confuse or mislead traffic, obstruct vision necessary for traffic 
safety, or otherwise endanger the public morals, health or safety. 
 

 
Page 1 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
 
17.70.020  General Prohibitions.   
 

A. No sign shall be allowed except as permitted by this Chapter. 
 

B. No sign shall be located so that the safety of a moving vehicle or pedestrian will 
be impaired by obscuring a driver's or pedestrian's vision. 

 
C. Sign shall be properly erected or attached to a structure and kept in good repair.  

Any lettering, logo, design, and other markings placed upon the sign shall be 
clear, distinct, and readable and maintained in that condition. 

 
17.70.030  Prohibited Signs.  The following signs shall not be permitted, erected or maintained on 
any property within the City of Norwalk, unless located within the confines of a building, or if not 
visible from outside the premises of the lot in which the sign is located. 
 

A. Moving or Flashing Lights.  Signs which incorporate in any manner any flashing, 
pulsating, rotating, beacons, or moving lights, except time and temperature 
display signs which are twelve (12) square feet or lessfor electronic message 
displays, as defined in Electronic Message Display Section 17.70.135 of this 
Chapter. 

 
B. Banners.  Except as specified in the Temporary Signs Section 17.70.130 of this 

Chapter, banners, pennants, spinners and streamers of any size, and local, state, 
or national flags greater than eighty (80) square feet in area, or numerous flags 
displayed to draw attention to a business and not to celebrate a national 
holiday. 

 
C. String Lights.  String lights used in connection with commercial premises for 

commercial purposes, other than Christmas decorations used from November 1st 
to January 15th on a temporary basis. 

 
D. Moving Signs.  Any sign which has any visible moving part, visible revolving parts 

or visible mechanical movement of any description or other apparent visible 
movement achieved by electrical, or mechanical means, including intermediate 
electrical pulsations, or by action of normal wind currents. 

 
E. Hazardous Sign.  Any sign or sign structure which: 

 
1. Is structurally unsafe, or 

 
2. Constitutes a hazard to safety or health by reason of inadequate 

maintenance, dilapidation or abandonment, or 
 

3. Is not kept in good repair, or 
 

4. Is capable of causing electrical shocks to persons likely to come in 
contact with it. 

 
F. Traffic Hazard.  Signs that constitute a traffic hazard, as noted in Section 17.70.210 

of this Chapter. 

 
Page 2 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
G. Obstructions.  Signs that constitute an obstruction so as to prevent free ingress or 

egress through any door, window or fire escape. 
 

H. Prohibited Attachment.  No sign or other advertising structure of any kind shall be 
attached to a stand-pipe or fire extinguisher. 

 
I.   Obscene Matter.  Signs that display obscene, indecent or immoral matter, or 

illustrate or state specified anatomical areas or specified sexual activities. 
 

J. Portable Sign.  Portable signs except as specified in the Temporary Sign Section 
17.70.130 of this Chapter. 

 
K. Roof Signs.  A roof sign erected upon or above a roof or parapet of a building. 

 
L. Billboards.  Billboards, except in accordance with Section 17.70.090 of this 

Chapter. 
 
M. Pole Signs.  A free standing sign erected and supported by one or more uprights. 

 
N. Signs Projecting over Public Right-of-Way.  It shall be unlawful to erect or maintain 

any sign on, over, or above any land or right-of-way belonging to City of Norwalk 
or other governmental entity unless specifically allowed by Section 17.70.220 of 
this Chapter. 

 
O. Discontinued Use.  On-premise signs that advertise an activity, business, product, 

or service no longer offered or conducted on the premises on which the sign is 
located for a period of more than twelve (12) months after such activity, business, 
product, or service has ceased being offered or conducted. 

 
P. High Intensity or Glaring Lights.  High intensity lights, strobe lights, or rotating 

beams shall be prohibited outside of a building or visible from the outside of a 
building in all zoning districts except when otherwise legally displayed as 
emergency lights or warning lights.  Illumination of signs shall be designed in such 
a way as to reflect light away from residential properties and motorists' vision. 

 
Q. Conflicting Signs.  Signs with a format which resembles or conflicts with traffic signs 

or signals. 
 

R. Unlawful Signs.  Any sign unlawfully installed, erected or maintained in violation of 
this chapter. 

 
S. Vehicle Signs.  Vehicle signs attached to or painted on a vehicle or trailer which is 

routinely parked within a public street right-of-way or within one hundred (100) 
feet of a public street right of way and visible from a public street during 
continuous or repetitive incidents for more than two (2) days or two (2) separate 
incidents with the intent to advertise or promote the interest of a business on-
premise or off-premise. 

 
17.70.040  Exemptions.  The following signs shall not require a sign permit. 
 

 
Page 3 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



A. Real Estate signs not exceeding thirty-two (32) square feet in area which advertise 
the sale, rental, or lease of the premises upon which said sign is located only.  
Such real estate signs shall not be located on public right-of-way and shall be 
limited to one sign for each street frontage. 

 
B. Professional nameplates not exceeding one square foot in area. 

 
C. Signs located within the confines of a building. 

 
D. Bulletin boards not over eight (8) square feet in area for public, charitable or 

religious institutions when the same are located on the premises of said institution. 
 

E. Directory signs denoting only the name and profession of occupants in a 
commercial building, public institutional building, or dwelling and not exceeding 
two square feet in area. 

 
F. Memorial signs or plaques, names of buildings, and date of erection when cut 

into any masonry surface or when constructed of bronze or other noncombustible 
and maintenance free materials, and not exceeding fifty (50) square feet in area. 

 
G. Traffic or other municipal signs, legal notices, railroad crossing signs, danger, 

temporary off-premises signs for new businesses, and such temporary emergency 
or non-advertising signs as may be installed on public property and/or approved 
by the City Council.   

 
H. Community Identification, information, or directional signs located on public 

property, which are owned by the City, identifies the name of the city, advertises 
community events, new businesses or identifies or directs traffic to public facilities, 
or landmark neighborhoods and commercial districts.  

 
Political campaign signs of not greater than twelve (12) square feet in an “R” 
district and thirty two (32) square feet in all other zoning districts and shall not be 
located on public right-of-way.  

 
J. The changing of the advertising copy or message on a painted or printed sign, 

theater marquees and similar signs specifically designed for the use of 
replaceable copy. 

 
K. Painting, repainting, or cleaning of an a billboard or sign shall not be considered 

an erection or alteration which requires a sign permit unless a structural change is 
made or the area of the sign is enlarged. 

 
L. Temporary signs permitted in accordance with the requirements of Section 

17.70.130 of this chapter. 
 
M. Signs, referring to construction, lease, or hire, not exceeding thirty-two (32) square 

feet in area. 
 

N. Name and address changes on directory signs.          
                                                          
O. Service signs identifying restrooms, public telephone facilities, first aid stations, 

emergency shelters and other similar public service facilities. 

 
Page 4 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
P. National, state, or local government flags which are less than eighty (80) square 

feet in area for each flag. 
 
Q. To assist with identification of new businesses in developing commercial districts 

with no direct arterial street frontage, the City Council and their discretion, can 
order the installation of a temporary sign to be installed by the City on public 
right-of-way.  The purpose of the sign is to allow for the temporary attachment of 
business placards that direct traffic to new businesses and commercial areas.  
Approval of the attachment of business placards to the sign must be approved 
by the City Council and may be allowed up to a period of one (1) year.  The 
design, attachment, and removal of the placards shall be arranged with city 
staff.   

 
17.70.050  On-Premise Sign Regulations.  The standards and regulations set forth within Sections 
17.70.060, 17.70.070, and 17.70.080 shall apply to all On-Premise Signs, which advertise, identify, 
and/or direct attention to a profession, business, service, activity, product, campaign or 
attraction which carried on, sold, offered, or manufactured in or upon the premises. 
 
17.70.060  Freestanding Identification Signs.  There shall be permitted one (1) freestanding 
identification sign for each street frontage of a lot, or one (1) sign for each three hundred (300) 
feet of street frontage, whichever is greater.  Freestanding identification signs shall include on-
premise pole signs, ground signs, or freestanding wall signs monument signs and project 
identification signs, as defined within this Ordinance.  Freestanding identification signs shall be 
constructed of class 1 or class 2 materials (as listed in the Architectural Standards, section 
17.60.020.B) to match the exterior materials of the existing principal building.  If building has 
exterior materials that do not meet the City’s Architectural Standards, then the sign shall still be 
constructed with class 1 or class 2 materials.  materials which are acceptable to the City and 
compatible with the principal building’s exterior wall materials. 
 
The following type, size, height, and setback for free standing identification signs, shall be 
permitted within the following zoning districts by use. 
 
Zoning 
Districts 

Type of Sign Maximum 
Size (sq. ft.) 

Maximum 
Height (ft.) 

Minimum Setback (ft.) 
from Front Setback Line 

A-R 
R 

Project Identification 
Sign* 

40(a) 7(b) 10 

C-O 
C-1 
C-2 
C-3 

Monument 80(a) 7(b) 10 

Project Identification 
Sign(c) 

200 25 15 

C-4 
TC 

Monument(d) 80 7 10(e) 

IC 
PC 

Monument 80(a) 7(b) 10 

C-3 
M-1 

Monument 80(a) 7(b) 10 
Pole 80 25 10 
Interstate High 
Rise/Billboards 

(f) (f) (f) 

*Except for individual one and two family dwellings. 
 

 
Page 5 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
(a) The sign area may increase four (4) square feet in area for each additional one (1) 
foot of setback to a maximum area of eighty (80) square feet.  The total area of a 
multiple sided ground sign’s exposed facings shall not be greater than twice the 
maximum sign size permitted at the signs proposed setbacks. 
 
(b) The sign height may increase one (1) foot in height for each additional one (1) foot 
of setback to a maximum height of fifteen (15) feet. 
 
(c) Identifies the name of a retail shopping center, or office or industrial complex with 
more than one (1) tenant on a lot of 100,000 sq. ft. or more and minimum 300 ft. of 
street frontage. 
 
(d) Within the C-4 or TC district, if an individual or series of buildings that has a (0) foot 
front yard setback or no parking between the building and street, no freestanding 
identification sign is permitted due to the use of building signs in close proximity to the 
street. 
 
(e) May be reduced to the building setback, however must be reviewed and 
approved at time of site plan submittal. 
 
(f) Permitted only in the C-3 district and within 600 feet of the centerline of Highway 5.  
An interstate high-rise/billboard sign must be approved through the site plan review 
process and must adhere to regulations of subsection 17. 70.090 B. 
 
17.70.070  Freestanding Bulletin Boards or Directory Signs.  One (1) freestanding bulletin 
board or one (1) directory sign shall be permitted within the lot of any permitted use in 
any zoning district, except within the lots of a one and two family dwellings.  Bulletin 
Boards or Directory Signs shall not be greater than thirty-two (32) square feet and ten 
(10) feet in height, and less than twenty-five (25) feet from a public street right-of-way. 
 
17.70.080  Building Signs.  The following standards and regulations shall be applied to 
Building Signs as permitted by use and zoning district: 
 

A. A-R, R, TC, IC, and PC Zoning Districts.  Building Signs shall incorporate 
aesthetic features compatible with the overall character of the zoning 
district and neighborhoods.  All building signs shall be composed of 
solid individual letters and logos or individual illuminated self-contained 
letters and logos attached to the building's exterior wall fascia.  Panel 
signs with letters incorporated or painted upon a panel or wall area 
shall be prohibited. 

 
The following maximum building sign area requirements shall apply to 
the following uses within the A-R, R, TC, IC, and PC Zoning Districts: 

 
1. Combined building signs not in excess of thirty (30) square feet 

per apartment complex, and for all other uses, except 
residential, combined wall signs not exceeding five (5) percent 
of the total square footage of each wall area of the principal 
building facing the street frontage. 

 

 
Page 6 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



B. C-0, C-1, C-2, C-3, and C-4 Zoning Districts.  Building Signs shall incorporate 
aesthetic features compatible with the overall character of the zoning district 
and neighborhoods.  All building signs are encouraged to be composed of solid 
individual letters and logos or individual illuminated self-contained letters and 
logos attached to the building's exterior wall fascia.  Open-channel neon signs 
are permitted, provided the neon does not flash, pulsate, or have a moving light.  
Panel signs with letters incorporated or painted upon a panel may be used on a 
building for one occupant, and shall be consistent in design. A uniform panel sign 
system to identify more than one occupant of a multi-tenant building may be 
permitted if approved by the City Council, upon receiving a recommendation by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission, and after a determination that the use of a 
uniform panel sign system maintains the aesthetic quality and character of the 
development, zoning district and neighborhood.  Signs painted upon the 
building's exterior wall fascia shall be prohibited. 

 
The following maximum building sign area requirements shall apply to the 
following uses within the C-0, C-1, C-2, C-3, and C-4 Zoning Districts: 

 
1. Combined building signs not in excess of thirty (30) square feet per 

apartment complex, and for all other uses, except residential, combined 
wall signs not exceeding five (5) percent of the total square footage of 
each wall area of the principal building facing the street frontage. 

 
C. M-1 Zoning District.  Building signs in the M-1 Zoning District shall comply with the 

following area requirements: 
 

1. Combined wall signs shall not exceed five (5) percent of the total square 
footage of each wall area of the principal building facing the street 
frontage. 

 
17.70.090  Billboards; Off-premise Advertising.  No off-premise sign or billboard shall be permitted 
within one hundred fifty (150) feet of any dwelling unit, public parkway, public park, or property 
line of a public or parochial school site, church site, hospital site, cemetery, similar institution or 
zoning district not permitting billboards or off-premise signs, and three hundred (300) feet of a "R" 
District. 
 

A. Permitted Zoning Districts.  Billboards which conform with the provisions of this 
section shall be permitted in the following zoning districtslocations:  C-3 Districts 
that are within 600 feet of the centerline of Highway 5 and M-1 Districts. 

 
B. Billboard Setback, Size and Height Requirements.  Billboards which conform with 

the provisions of this section shall be permitted in the following zoning district: C-3 
and within 600 feet of the centerline of Highway 5.  All billboards shall meet the 
minimum required setback of the zoning district it is located in.  Billboards shall 
have a maximum height of 35 feet and a maximum of 350 square feet of sign 
area for a single sided sign and 675 square feet of sign area for a double sided 
sign.  

 
C. Spacing of Billboards.   

 
1. On federal and state highways, federal and state regulations for spacing 

and setbacks shall apply, provided, however, if the regulations of this 

 
Page 7 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



chapter are found more restrictive, the more restrictive requirement shall 
apply. 

 
2. No billboard shall be established within five hundred (500) feet of any 

other billboard. 
 

D. Construction and Maintenance.  Billboards shall be constructed of structurally 
sound, permanent and low maintenance metal, with a single pole design that is 
ground foundation mounted.  Billboards shall be properly maintained as required 
of all signs regulated by this chapter, and a maintenance agreement and bond 
shall be executed with the City prior to issuance of a permit to allow installation of 
a billboard. 

 
17.70.100  Projecting Signs. 
 

A. Application.  Projecting signs as regulated by this chapter shall include any sign, 
other than an awning sign, canopy sign, marquee, or building sign, which 
projects from and is supported by a wall of a building or structure, and whose 
message is on a plane which is generally perpendicular to the supporting wall.  
Projecting signs which extend over public right of way shall be permitted only in 
the C-4 and TC Districts.  

 
B. Construction.  Every projecting sign, including the frame, braces and supports 

thereof, shall meet the compliance of the building code of the City of Norwalk, 
Iowa. 

 
C. Thickness Limitation.  The thickness measured between the principal faces of any 

projecting sign shall not exceed twelve (12) inches. 
 

D. Sign Area and Height.  Projecting signs shall not exceed twenty-five (25) square 
feet or the maximum square footage permitted for a building sign, whichever is 
least.  The area allocated to a projecting sign shall be applied toward the 
maximum area allowed for building signs on buildings as permitted in the use in 
that zoning district.  The area of a projecting signs shall be measured from the 
extreme points of the peripheral encasement.  No part of any projecting sign shall 
be less than ten (10) feet above ground level, except as provided in sub-Section 
17.70.100.E. 

               
E. Location.  Every projecting sign shall be at least ten (10) feet above any sidewalk 

area over which it is erected, and a distance not greater than two (2) feet from 
the wall to which it is attached, measuring from the point of the sign nearest 
thereto.  Every projecting sign to be erected over public or private driveways or 
thoroughfares shall be placed not less than fifteen (15) feet above the level of 
same. 

 
F. Obstructions and Traffic Hazards.  Every projecting sign shall be erected in a 

manner which does not constitute an obstruction or traffic hazard regulated by 
this chapter. 

 
 G. Projection over Public Property.  It shall be unlawful for any projecting sign to be 

located over public property or a public easement unless approval is granted by 
the City Council of the City of Norwalk, Iowa. 

 
Page 8 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
17.70.110  Marquees, Awnings and Canopy Signs.  The term "sign" herein shall apply to lettering 
placed upon a marquee, awning, or canopy when projecting from a wall of a building. 
 

A. Sign Area.  The area of the letters or logo encompassing the sign message 
incorporated upon the marquee, awning or canopy shall be applied toward the 
maximum building sign area permitted for the use in that zoning district. 

 
17.70.120  Directional Signs.   
 

A. Application.  Directional signs as regulated by this chapter shall include any sign 
for the purpose of control of all modes of traffic which is located on private 
property. 

 
B. Traffic Control.  The provisions and regulations of Section 17.70.140 of this chapter 

shall not apply to directional signs on private property of a traffic control nature 
including restricted parking, stop, yield, speed, and signs directing traffic flow, 
provided; however, said signs shall not be greater than eight (8) square feet in 
area. 

 
C. Access Identification.  Two free standing directional signs intended to identify an 

access into or out of a lot shall be permitted per access, provided; however, said 
sign is not greater than ten (10) square feet in area and two and one-half (2-1/2) 
feet in height.  The provisions and regulations of Section 17.70.140 of this chapter 
shall not apply to access identification signs. 

 
 
17.70.130  Temporary Signs. 
 

A. Application.  Temporary signs shall include any construction, real estate, political, 
portable sign, banner, pennant, inflatable signs, valance or advertising display 
constructed of cloth, canvas, light fabric, cardboard, wallboard or other 
materials, with or without frames, intended to be displayed for a short period of 
time only. 

 
B. Special Permission.  Temporary signs except for construction, real estate, or 

political signs, may be used for special occasions with City Council Zoning 
Administrator approval.  There shall be no more than two (2) such occasions per 
year; such occasions shall not exceed ten (10) days duration shall not exceed 10 
days per occasion.  Community festivals or other similar events may be exempted 
from the provisions of this section with the approval of the City Council. 

 
C. Construction, Real Estate and Political Signs.  Temporary real estate, construction, 

and political signs less than thirty-two (32) square feet in area shall be permitted in 
any zoning district without the issuance of a sign permit, provided no real estate 
or political sign greater than twelve (12) square feet shall be permitted on a lot 
occupied by a single family dwelling in a RE-1, R-1, or R-2 district. 

 
17.70.135  Electronic Message Display. 
 

A. Application.  Electronic Message Display shall refer to any sign utilizing light to 
display a message and that is changed by an electronic process.  Electronic 

 
Page 9 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Message Displays are only allowed as part of a monument sign.  The size of the 
Electronic Message Display shall count towards the allowed square footage of 
the sign. 

 
B. Standards.  The following standards shall apply to all Electronic Message Displays: 
 

1. Electronic Message Displays along State routes shall comply with all Iowa 
Department of Transportation standards.  If an Iowa Department of 
Transportation standard conflicts with a City standard, then the more strict 
standard shall apply. 

2. Electronic Message Displays shall only include only text, logos, and other 
special characters,  

3. Electronic Message Displays shall be prohibited from displaying video, multiple 
pictures or graphics that give the illusion of motion or a video, and moving 
graphics, this includes travelling or scrolling text messages. 

4. Electronic Message Displays shall only use LED (Light Emitting Diode) displays. 
5. Electronic Message Displays are prohibited from using television displays, 

plasma screens, LED screens, and holographic displays to messages. 
6. Each message shall remain in a fixed position for a minimum of 8 seconds. 
7. Each change of message is accomplished in one second or less. 
8. Lighting must be shielded to prevent beams or rays of light from being 

directed at any portion of the main travel way of the adjacent roads.  The 
display cannot cause glare or impair the vision of any driver or interfere with 
the operation of the driver’s vehicle.  In no event may an Electronic Message 
Display exceed a maximum illumination of 5,000 candelas per square meter 
during daylight hours and a maximum illumination of 500 candelas per square 
meter between dusk to dawn, as measured from the displays face at 
maximum brightness settings. 

 
17.70.140  Permits and Fees.  It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, alter, or relocate within 
the City of Norwalk any sign or billboard except as specified in Sections 17.70.020 and 17.70.120 
without first obtaining a permit from the building department and  paying the fee required 
herein. 
 

A. Application for Permit.  Application for permits shall be made in such form as 
required by the building department, and shall contain or have attached thereto 
the following information unless such information shall be deemed unnecessary 
by the Zoning Administrator. 

 
1. Name, address, and telephone number of the applicant. 

 
2. Location of building(s), structure(s), or lot to which or upon which the sign 

or billboard is to be attached or erected. 
 

3. Position of sign or billboard in relation to nearby buildings, structures, or 
streets. 

 
4. One blueprint or drawing of the plans, specifications, and method of 

construction and attachment to the building or ground. 
 
 

 
Page 10 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



5. Copy of stress sheets and calculations showing the sign or billboard is 
designed for live and dead loads and wind pressure loads in any direction 
in the amount required by this and all other applicable laws and 
ordinances. 

 
6. Name of person, firm, corporation, or association erecting the structure. 

 
7. Valuation of cost of construction and sign. 

 
8. Such other information as the Zoning Administrator shall require to show 

full compliance with this and all other laws and ordinances of the City of 
Norwalk. 

 
B. Permit Fees.  Sign permit fees shall be required as follows: 

 
1. Any sign requiring a sign permit:  $25.00 plus $.50 per square foot.  

 
2. If the sign is to be electrical, an additional fee of $25.00 shall be charged. 

 
17.70.150  Inspection.  The Zoning Administrator may inspect from time to time as he deems 
necessary, each sign, billboard or other advertising structure regulated by this chapter for the 
purpose of ascertaining whether the same is secure or insecure, and whether it is in need of 
removal or repair. 
 
17.70.160  Unsafe and Unlawful Signs.  If the Zoning Administrator shall find that any sign, billboard 
or other advertising structure regulated herein is unsafe, insecure, menace to the public, 
prohibited, or is in violation of the provisions of this chapter, he/she shall promptly give written 
notice to the permittee thereof or to the owner of premises on which the sign is located.  If the 
permittee or owner fails to remove or alter the sign structure so as to comply with the standards 
herein set forth within three (3) working days after such notice, such sign, billboard or other 
advertising structure may be removed or altered to comply by the Zoning Administrator at the 
expense of the permittee or owner of the property upon which it located, however, if the owner 
of the sign has promptly ordered the necessary parts to repair the sign and has not received 
them or has promptly ordered the repair work done by an authorized erector and the erector 
has failed to respond within the three (3) work day period then a further extension of time may 
be granted upon a verified statement that such delay is not the result of any act of the 
permittee or owner of the premises. 
 
If the Zoning Administrator shall find that any sign, billboard or other advertising structure 
regulated herein has been constructed or erected in violation of the provisions of this chapter, 
he shall promptly give written notice to the owner of the premises on which the sign is located.  If 
the owner fails to remove or alter the structure so as to comply with the standards herein set forth 
within three (3) work days after such notice, such sign or billboard may be removed or altered to 
comply by the Zoning Administrator at the expense of the owner of the property upon which it is 
located.  The Zoning Administrator may refuse to issue a permit to any permittee or owner who 
refuses to pay costs so assessed provided such authority is confined to the premises where the 
violation occurred. 
 
17.70.170  Painting Required.  The owner of any sign as defined and regulated by this chapter 
shall be required to have properly painted all parts and supports of said sign or billboard unless 
the same are otherwise treated to prevent rust or decay. 
 

 
Page 11 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



17.70.180  Wind Pressure and Dead Load Requirements.  All signs, billboards and other 
advertising structures shall be designed and constructed to withstand a wind pressure of not less 
than thirty (30) pounds per square foot of area, or as further regulated by the building code of 
the City of Norwalk, Iowa; and shall be constructed to receive dead loads as required in the 
building code or other ordinances of the City of Norwalk. 
 
17.70.190  Maintenance.  All signs, billboards and other advertising structures, together with all of 
their supports, braces, guys and anchors, shall be kept in good repair and in proper state of 
preservation and working order.  The display surfaces of all signs shall be kept neatly painted or 
posted at all times.  The Zoning Administrator after ten (10) days notice to the sign or billboard 
owner may order the removal of any signs or billboards that are not maintained in accordance 
with the provisions of this chapter and the cost assessed against the property where said sign or 
billboard is located, however, if the owner of the sign or billboard has promptly ordered the 
necessary parts to repair the sign or other advertising structure and has not received them or has 
promptly ordered the repair work done by an authorized erector and the erector has failed to 
respond within the ten (10) days period, then a further extension of time may be granted, upon 
filing a verified statement of that such delay is not a result of any act of the sign or billboard 
owner. 
 
17.70.200  Signs Not to Constitute Traffic Hazard.  No sign, billboard or other advertising structure 
on private property as regulated by this chapter shall be erected; 1) at or near the intersection 
of any streets or near a private access to a public street in such a manner as to obstruct free 
and clear vision; or b) at any location where, by reason of the position, shape or color, it may 
interfere with, obstruct the view of or be confused with any authorized traffic sign, signal or 
device; or c) which makes use of the words "STOP", "LOOK", "DRIVE-IN", "DANGER", or any other 
word, phrase, symbol, or character in such manner as to interfere with, mislead or confuse the 
motoring public. 
 
Notwithstanding, the general requirements set forth in the preceding paragraph, no sign, 
billboard or other advertising structure shall be located:  a) on a corner lot in all districts, in such 
a manner as to impede vision between a height of two and one-half (2-1/2) feet and ten (10) 
feet above the centerline elevations of the affected street and within an area bounded by the 
street right-of-way lines of a corner lot and a straight line joining points on said right-of-way lines 
twenty-five (25) feet from the point of intersection of said right-of-way lines; or b) in all districts, 
except “C-4", "TC", and one and two family residential lots, if erected within five (5) feet of a 
public right-of-way and within twenty-five (25) feet of a private access drive or adjoining 
building site boundary. 
 
17.70.210  Signs Extending Over City Property.  It shall be unlawful for any person to erect or 
maintain any sign or billboard which extends over public property or a public easement.  An 
exception may be granted by the City Council for a marquee, canopy, awning, projecting sign 
or projection of a building sign in the "C-4" or "TC" District, if the building setback does not 
provide sufficient space to accommodate same.  The posting of adequate insurance shall also 
be required to protect the City plus a sign permit. 
 
17.70.220  Non-Conforming Signs.  Any sign or billboard in existence at the time of the adoption 
of this ordinance which does not conform with the provisions of this chapter shall be considered 
non-conforming, and shall be removed, or altered to be made in compliance with this section 
prior to January 1, 2013.  Any alteration or replacement of a non-conforming sign, shall conform 
to the requirements and standards of this chapter. 
 

 
Page 12 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



17.70.230  Revocation of Permits.  The Zoning Administrator is hereby authorized and empowered 
to revoke any permits issued by him upon failure of the holder thereof to comply with any 
provisions of this chapter. 
 
17.70.240  Jurisdiction of Norwalk Board of Adjustment.  The Norwalk Board of Adjustment shall 
have jurisdiction for any requests for variances involving sign location, sign height, or sign size not 
consistent with this chapter.  The Board shall rule on any request in accordance with Section 
17.04.190 of this ordinance.    

 
Page 13 of 13 

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



             
 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
         Item No. 9 

       For Meeting of 12.01.2016 
 
REQUEST: Request from Norwalk Land Co to amend the Site Plan of the 

Norwalk Orchard View Townhome 
 

STAFF CONTACT: Luke Parris, AICP 
City Planner 
 

APPLICANT(S): Norwalk Land Co 
PO Box 267 
Johnston, Iowa 50263 
  

GENERAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

The Norwalk Orchard View Townhomes was a 74 lot townhome 
development approved earlier this fall.  The development included 
4-unit buildings along the outer perimeter of the project and 6-unit 
buildings on the interior of the project.  The original site plan 
showed the 4-unit buildings designed with an area extended out 
near the rear deck, as shown below: 



 
 

REQUEST: The amendment request is to have the entire rear of the 4-unit 
buildings flat with the start of the deck.  This would allow for more 
living space inside of each unit.  An example of the new 4-unit 
building is shown below. 
 

 



 
ARCHITECTURAL 
STANDARDS: 

The requested change only impacts the City’s Architectural 
Standards which require that each wall façade must have a change 
in wall plane or exterior material type, texture, or color.  The 
proposed amendment removes a change in the wall plane along the 
rear of the 4-unit buildings.  However, the developer has indicated 
that each unit will use a different color of siding, which meets the 
requirement. 
 

 
 

STAFF ANALYSIS – 
ZONING ORDINANCE: 

Varying the color of each unit along meets the intent of the 
Architectural Standards to ensure that each dwelling unit is 
differentiated from the other.  The new building footprints also fit 
within the already approved lot area for each unit. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends that the request 
for the amendment to the Site Plan for the Norwalk Orchard View 
Townhomes be approved with the following conditions:  

 
• That the applicant provides all supporting documentation 

required within the Norwalk Subdivision Regulations and Norwalk 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• That any significant modifications to the site plan be reviewed 

and approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council. 

 
  



RESOLUTION NO 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE SITE PLAN FOR THE 
NORWALK ORCHARD VIEW TOWNHOMES 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission reviewed this request at their regular 
meeting on November 17, 2016 and recommends approval of the Site Plan amendment; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, that the applicant provides all supporting documentation required within the 
Norwalk Subdivision Regulations and Norwalk Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, that any significant modifications to the site plan be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the City Council does hereby approve the 
amended Site Plan for the Norwalk Orchard View Townhomes as described and shown 
in Attachment “A” attached hereto and made a part thereof by reference. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 1st day of December, 2016. 
 
 
Tom Phillips, Mayor     ATTEST: Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk 
   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Aye  Nay  Abstain  Absent 
Isley          
Kuhl          
Lester          
Livingston         
Riva          
 
 



TYPICAL NOTES:

2009 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE:

4
 
P

l
e
x
 
U

n
i
t
 
-
 
3
 
B

e
d
r
o
o
m

-
 
S

l
a
b
 
o
n
 
G

r
a
d
e

O
r
c
h

a
r
d

 
V

i
e

w
 
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

e
s

AL
LE

R
gr

ou
p

de
sig

n
18

40
 N

W
 11

8th
 S

t. S
uit

e 2
20

Cl
ive

, IA
 50

32
5

51
5.2

54
.11

81

 

C
l
i
e

n
t
 
R

e
v
i
e

w
 
S

e
t
 
-
 
N

o
t
 
F

o
r
 
C

o
n

s
t
r
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
-
 
0

9
.
1

9
.
1

6

Happe Homes

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
-
 
N

o
r
w

a
l
k
,
 
I
o
w

a

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" COMPOSITE WRAPPED COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VINYL LAP SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2x8 FASCIA w/ METAL WRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT B-REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT A-REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE METAL FLASHING AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" COMPOSITE BAND ON CUT STONE CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE VENEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1X6 TRIM w/ METAL WRAP (FRONT ELEVATION ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" VINYL LINEAL TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" VINYL FRIEZE TRIM (FRONT ELEVATION ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2x8 BAND TRIM w/ METAL WRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VINYL SHAKE SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
1HR RATED WALL BETWEEN INTERIOR UNITS (SEE UNIT B FOR ADD'L INFO.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT A-REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT B-REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VINYL PRIVACY FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VINYL PRIVACY FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
VINYL PRIVACY FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" VINYL FENCE (SEE REAR ELEV. FOR LOCATION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAM/TK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016 Aller Design Group, LLC All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. TYPICAL CONSTRUCTION ASSEMBLIES   A	ROOF CONSTRUCTION: ROOF CONSTRUCTION: COMPOSITE ROOF SHINGLES ON #30 FELT ON 1/2" OSB ROOF  SHEATHING.  ½" FIRE RESISTIVE PLYWOOD ROOF SHEATHING REQUIRED ON  ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS AS NOTED ON ROOF PLANS. CEILINGS: FRAMED 16" O.C. = 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD FRAMED 24" O.C. = 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD OR 1/2" CEILING GYPSUM BOARD   B	EXTERIOR WALL CONSTRUCTION EXTERIOR WALL CONSTRUCTION SIDING (AS NOTED ON ELEVATIONS) ON HOUSE WRAP OVER  EXTERIOR WALL SHEATHING AS NOTED BELOW: 7/16" OSB ON FRONT ELEVATION, U.N.O. RIGID FOAM SHEATHING ON SIDE AND REAR WALLS 7/16" OSB ON FACE OF ALL GABLES 7/16" OSB ON ALL INSIDE AND OUTSIDE CORNERS INTERIOR: 1/2" GYPSUM WALL BOARD OVER 4 MIL POLY.   1/2" GYPSUM WALL BOARD OVER 4 MIL POLY.  VAPOR BARRIER   C	EXTERIOR MASONRY: EXTERIOR MASONRY: STONE VENEER OVER HOUSE WRAP ON 7/16" OSB BRICK VENEER W/ MASONRY TIES 16" O.C. HORIZONTAL &  VERTICAL OVER HOUSE WRAP ON 7/16" OSB    D	COMMONWALL CONSTRUCTION COMMONWALL CONSTRUCTION 2- HOUR FIRE RESISTIVE ASSEMBLY:  2- PARALLEL 1 HOUR RATED 2X4 WALLS FRAMED 16" O.C. AND  SPACED 3" APART (FRAME DIMENSION) WITH 1 LAYER OF 5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM WALLBOARD ON EACH FACE OF EACH WALL.  MAINTAIN SEPARATION FROM TOP OF FOUNDATION TO  UNDERSIDE OF ROOF DECK.. (SEE DETAIL SHEET D1)   E	COMMON GARAGE WALL CONSTRUCTION COMMON GARAGE WALL CONSTRUCTION 2- HOUR FIRE RESISTIVE ASSEMBLY:   2- PARALLEL 1 HOUR RATED 2X4 WALLS FRAMED 16" O.C. AND  SPACED 3" APART (FRAME DIMENSION) WITH 1 LAYER OF 5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM WALLBOARD ON EACH FACE OF EACH WALL.  MAINTAIN SEPARATION FROM TOP OF FOUNDATION TO  UNDERSIDE OF ROOF DECK.. (SEE DETAIL SHEET D1)   F	BASEMENT AND GARAGE FLOOR CONSTRUCTION BASEMENT AND GARAGE FLOOR CONSTRUCTION 4" CONCRETE SLAB (MINIMUM) ON COMPACTED GRANULAR  FILL.   G	FRAME FLOOR CONSTRUCTION FRAME FLOOR CONSTRUCTION FINISH FLOORING ( AS NOTED ON FLOOR PLANS) ON 3/4"  FLOOR SHEATHING ON ENGINEERED FLOOR TRUSSES OR AS NOTED (SIZE AND SPACING AS NOTED ON FLOOR PLANS)  MAIN FLOOR CEILINGS: 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD OR 1/2" CEILING GYPSUM BOARD FRAMED 24" O.C.: 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD OR 1/2" CEILING GYPSUM BOARD FRAMED 16" O.C.: 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD 2  WINDOWS WINDOWS ROUGH OPENING OF WINDOWS TO BE NOTED IN FT./IN. ON  FLOOR PLANS, U.N.O. TYPICAL HEAD HEIGHTS FOR WINDOWS TO BE 6'-11 1/2", U.N.O.   A	CASEMENT WINDOWS CASEMENT WINDOWS WINDOW HINGE NOTED ON EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS   B	SLIDING WINDOWS SLIDING WINDOWS NOTED ON PLANS AS SL   C	SINGLE HUNG WINDOWS  SINGLE HUNG WINDOWS  NOTED ON PLANS AS SH   D	DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS NOTED ON PLANS AS DH 3  DOORS DOORS DOOR SIZES NOTED ON FLOOR PLANS IN FT./IN ON FLOOR PLANS, U.N.O. TYPICAL  HEAD HEIGHT FOR DOORS TO BE 6'-11"   A	WOOD JAMBS AND CASING WOOD JAMBS AND CASING ROUGH OPENING FOR HINGED DOORS TO BE 2" WIDER THAN  DOOR SIZES NOTED ON PLAN,  BI-FOLD DOORS TO BE 2-1/4"  WIDER THAN DOOR SIZE NOTED ON PLANS. ROUGH OPENING FOR BI-PASS DOORS TO BE 1" WIDER THAN  DOOR SIZE NOTED ON PLANS.   B	GYPSUM BOARD OPENINGS GYPSUM BOARD OPENINGS ROUGH OPENINGS FOR BI-PASS DOORS TO BE SAME AS DOOR  SIZE NOTED ON PLANS. ROUGH OPENINGS FOR BI-FOLD DOORS TO BE 1-1/4" WIDER  THAN DOOR SIZE NOTED ON PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL STRUCTURE AND BEAMS TO BE SIZED BY TRUSS OR JOIST MANUFACTURER

AutoCAD SHX Text
09.19.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
These documents, and the information contained herein, are exclusive property of Aller Design Group LLC. exclusive property of Aller Design Group LLC. Any use, duplication, or transfer of these documents without the expressed, written consent of Aller Design Group LLC is strictly prohibited. Aller Design Group LLC retains copyright to and ownership of these plans.

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
[515] 963.0842

AutoCAD SHX Text
Builder:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLD ALL DOOR AND WINDOW ROUGH OPENINGS 5" (MIN.) FROM INTERSECTING WALLS TO ALLOW FOR TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST PLACEMENT OF FRAMING MEMBERS AS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE REQUIRED CLEARANCE FOR PLUMBING AND MECHANICAL SYSTEMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL EXTERIOR FRAME DIMENSIONS INCLUDE 1/2" THICK WALL SHEATHING

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uFRONT ELEVATION - 4 PLEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uREAR ELEVATION - 4 PLEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uLEFT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT A-REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uRIGHT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



C
EC

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.
24

00
 8

6t
h 

St
re

et
 . 

U
ni

t 1
2 

 . 
 D

es
 M

oi
ne

s, 
Io

w
a 

 5
03

22
51

5.
27

6.
48

84
  .

  F
ax

: 5
15

.2
76

.7
08

4 
 . 

 m
ai

l@
ce

cl
ac

.c
om

THIS

SITE

Q
:\E

-F
IL

ES
\E

-7
00

0\
E7

44
2\

_C
3D

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
\0

1-
C

O
V

ER
.d

w
g,

 1
0/

26
/2

01
6 

3:
11

:4
7 

PM
, c

m
cc

an
n,

 1
:1

lparris
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



11

10 9

5
7 6

3

2
14

812

OUTLOT 'Z'

16

15

14

13

19

18

17

20

24

22

23

21

29

30

31

32

26

25

28

27

36

33

34

35

39

38

37

40

44

42

43

41

48

46

45

50

49

47

55

56

53

52

54

51

60

58

57

62

61

59

73

70

74

69

67

64

65

66

63

68

71

72

39

40

42

41

29

30

28

27

C
EC

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.
24

00
 8

6t
h 

St
re

et
 . 

U
ni

t 1
2 

 . 
 D

es
 M

oi
ne

s, 
Io

w
a 

 5
03

22
51

5.
27

6.
48

84
  .

  F
ax

: 5
15

.2
76

.7
08

4 
 . 

 m
ai

l@
ce

cl
ac

.c
om

Q
:\E

-F
IL

ES
\E

-7
00

0\
E7

44
2\

_C
3D

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
\0

2-
D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
.d

w
g,

 1
0/

26
/2

01
6 

3:
12

:4
2 

PM
, c

m
cc

an
n,

 1
:1



3
2

1

4

11 10
9

5
7

6

8

12

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

17

16

15

14

13

19

18

20

24

22

23

21

26

25

28

27

29

30

31

32

39

38

37

40

36

33

34

35

44

42

43

41

48

46

45

50

49

47

57

62

61

55

56

53

52

54

51

60

58

59

73

71

70

72

74

69

67

64

65

66

63

68

C
EC

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.
24

00
 8

6t
h 

St
re

et
 . 

U
ni

t 1
2 

 . 
 D

es
 M

oi
ne

s, 
Io

w
a 

 5
03

22
51

5.
27

6.
48

84
  .

  F
ax

: 5
15

.2
76

.7
08

4 
 . 

 m
ai

l@
ce

cl
ac

.c
om

Q
:\E

-F
IL

ES
\E

-7
00

0\
E7

44
2\

_C
3D

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
\0

3-
U

TI
LI

TY
.d

w
g,

 1
0/

26
/2

01
6 

3:
14

:1
3 

PM
, c

m
cc

an
n,

 1
:1



SB

11 10

9 57 6

3

2

1

4

8

12

OUTLOT 'Z'

16

15

14

13

20

19

18

17

32

26

25

28

27

21

24

22

23

29

30

31

51

73

71

70

72

74

69

67

64

65

66

63

68

33

34

35

60

58

57

62

61

59

55

56

53

52

54

48

46

45

50

49

47

36

44

42

43

41

39

38

37

40

SB

2' MIN

1' MIN.

1' MIN.

1' MIN.

SB

C
EC

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.
24

00
 8

6t
h 

St
re

et
 . 

U
ni

t 1
2 

 . 
 D

es
 M

oi
ne

s, 
Io

w
a 

 5
03

22
51

5.
27

6.
48

84
  .

  F
ax

: 5
15

.2
76

.7
08

4 
 . 

 m
ai

l@
ce

cl
ac

.c
om

·

·

·
·
·

·

Q
:\E

-F
IL

ES
\E

-7
00

0\
E7

44
2\

_C
3D

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
\0

4-
G

R
A

D
IN

G
.d

w
g,

 1
0/

26
/2

01
6 

3:
15

:4
4 

PM
, c

m
cc

an
n,

 1
:1



5
7

6

3
2

1

4

8

11 10
9

12

16

15

14

13

20

19

18

17

21

24

22

23

26

25

28

27

32

29

30

31

33

34

35

36

39

38

37

44

42

43

41

40

48

46

45

50

49

47

51

60

58

57

62

61

59

55

56

53

52

54

67

64

65

66

63

68

73

71

70

72

74

69

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

C
EC

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.
24

00
 8

6t
h 

St
re

et
 . 

U
ni

t 1
2 

 . 
 D

es
 M

oi
ne

s, 
Io

w
a 

 5
03

22
51

5.
27

6.
48

84
  .

  F
ax

: 5
15

.2
76

.7
08

4 
 . 

 m
ai

l@
ce

cl
ac

.c
om

Q
:\E

-F
IL

ES
\E

-7
00

0\
E7

44
2\

_C
3D

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
\0

5-
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
.d

w
g,

 1
0/

26
/2

01
6 

3:
16

:0
6 

PM
, c

m
cc

an
n,

 1
:1



             
 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
         Item No. 10 

       For Meeting of 12.01.2016 
 
REQUEST: Request from J Larson Homes, LLC to approve the Final Plat of the 

Norwalk Orchard View Townhomes 
 

STAFF CONTACT: Luke Parris, AICP 
City Planner 
 

APPLICANT(S): J Larson Homes, LLC  Civil Engineering Consultants 
10604 NW 75th Place  2400 86th Street, Unit 12 
Grimes, Iowa 50111  Urbandale, Iowa 50322 
 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION: This request would create 74 townhome lots and the common 
owner’s association lot on Parcel 3 of the Orchard View PUD.   
 

IMPACT ON 
NEIGHBORHOOD: 

The surrounding ground is currently undeveloped with the exception 
of nearby two-family homes along Wright Road to the southeast.  
The surrounding development is all planned as single family 
residential as a part of various PUDs. 
 

VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN 
TRAFFIC: 

The plat shows two connections onto Orchard Hills Drive at the 
intersections of Sycamore Drive and Braeburn Drive.  The streets 
internal to the development are private and were site planned to 
meet the city’s standards for private streets.   
 

TRAIL PLAN: The site will have a 5’ wide sidewalk installed along Orchard Hills 
Drive.   
 

ZONING HISTORY FOR SITE 
AND IMMEDIATE VICINITY: 

The site was zoned in the Orchard View Planned Unit Development 
on October 4, 2012 (Ordinance 12-09).  The site is identified as 
Parcel 3 in the PUD and allows for R-3 uses.   
 
The City approved an amendment to the PUD on August 18, 2016, 
related to the ownership of the townhome units.  That amendment 
stated that “it is the intent that the parcel will be developed as an 
owner-occupied community.  All units will initially be marketed 
individually for-sale and shall not be operated as a rental complex.  
Restrictive covenants shall be submitted to the City for approval at 



the time of final approval, implementing the intent of this 
paragraph.” 
 
Staff has received the restrictive covenants and is currently working 
with the City Attorney to determine if the intent of the PUD 
amendment is met.  Staff will provide an update at the meeting. 
 

BUFFERS REQUIRED/ 
NEEDED: 
 

The proposed development would require a buffer next to any 
adjacent single-family districts.  Single family districts are located on 
the east, west, and north.  The developer has shown a 15’ wide 
buffer easement that is in addition to the required 30’ setback. 
 

DRAINAGE: The development includes a storm sewer system that connects with 
the City system along Orchard Hills Drive.  The western portion of the 
development drains to the southwest into a detention pond that 
releases at the south property line. 
 

DEVELOPMENT HISTORY: The area was planned as a PUD on October 3, 2012.  A preliminary 
plat that included the area as an outlot was approved in January 
2014.  A preliminary plat and site plan for the project was approved 
on August 18, 2016.   
 

FLOODPLAIN: None of the proposed lots are located within a floodplain. 
 

PARKLAND: Parkland dedication was identified in the PUD as a park in the 
northern area of the Orchard View development. 
 

UTILITIES: WATER, 
SANITARY SEWER, STORM 
SEWER. 

• An 8” public water main is provided throughout the site with 
an associated easement. 

• An 8” public sanitary sewer is provided with the proper 
easements shown. 

• Private storm sewer is provided throughout the site.  A 
portion of the storm sewer connects into existing City storm 
sewer, the remaining sewer drains into a private detention 
basin in the southwest of the development.  Maintenance 
easement agreements for the detention basin are provided. 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO 
COMPREHENSIVE LAND 
USE PLAN: 

The future land use plan for the area is identified as High Density 
Residential.  This R-3 development meets the intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  In the recent proposed Future Land Use 
update (which has not been approved) this area is shown as 
Medium Density Residential.  The proposed final plat meets the 
definition of the proposed Medium Density Residential category. 
 

STAFF ANALYSIS – 
ZONING ORDINANCE: 

The Final Plat consists of 74 townhome lots.  The plat consists of 7.08 
acres of land northwest of the proposed intersection of Orchard Hills 
Drive and Wright Road. 
 
Streets shown will be private and maintained by the owner’s 
association.  The Zoning Ordinance requires that these streets be 
signed with blue signs and labeled as “Private Streets.” 
 



The PUD requires that multi-family structures along the perimeter of 
the development be no taller than two stories.  The proposed 
development includes two-story units along the perimeter and 
three-story units on the interior of the site. 
 

STAFF ANALYSIS – 
SUBDIVISION 
ORDINANCE: 

The Subdivision Ordinance requires that Final Plat submissions 
include such criteria as boundaries of property, engineer’s 
certificate, easements and right-of-way widths. All information has 
been submitted by the applicant.  The Final Plat shows platted 
building lines, property lines with dimensions, easements and right-of-
way widths. 
 
The applicant will need to submit all other required documents prior 
to release of the final plat for recording. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Therefore, the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends that the 
request for the Final Plat of Norwalk Orchard View Townhomes be 
approved with the following conditions:  
 

• That staff verifies that the restrictive covenants provide 
information implementing the intent of the August 2016 PUD 
amendment; 
 

• That the applicant provides all supporting documentation 
required within the Norwalk Subdivision Regulations. 

 
• That any significant modifications to the final plat be 

reviewed and approved by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission and City Council. 

 
 
     X   Resolution            Ordinance          Contract      Other (Specify)     
 
Funding Source: NA          
 
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL     Luke Nelson     
                 City Manager  



RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF THE NORWALK ORCHARD VIEW TOWNHOMES 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission reviewed this request at their regular meeting 
on November 17, 2016 and recommends approval of the Final Plat; and 
 
WHEREAS, that staff verifies that the restrictive covenants provide information 
implementing the intent of the August 2016 PUD amendment; 
 
WHEREAS, that the applicant provides all supporting documentation required within the 
Norwalk Subdivision Regulations.; and 
 
WHEREAS, that any significant modifications to the final plat be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the City Council does hereby approve the Final 
Plat of the Norwalk Orchard View Townhomes as described and shown in Attachment 
“A” attached hereto and made a part thereof by reference. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 1st day of December, 2016. 
 
       
Tom Phillips, Mayor     ATTEST: Jodi Eddleman, City Clerk 
   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Aye  Nay  Abstain  Absent 
Isley          
Kuhl          
Lester          
Livingston         
Riva          
 
      __________________________________ 
      
 



THIS

SITE

C
EC

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.
24

00
 8

6t
h 

St
re

et
 . 

U
ni

t 1
2 

 . 
 D

es
 M

oi
ne

s, 
Io

w
a 

 5
03

22
51

5.
27

6.
48

84
  .

  F
ax

: 5
15

.2
76

.7
08

4 
 . 

 m
ai

l@
ce

cl
ac

.c
om

Q
:\E

-F
IL

ES
\E

-7
00

0\
E7

44
2\

_C
3D

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\P

la
t\0

1-
FP

 C
ov

er
.d

w
g,

 1
1/

7/
20

16
 1

2:
23

:1
4 

PM
, c

m
cc

an
n,

 1
:1



OUTLOT 'Z'

19

18

17

55

56

53

52

54

48

46

45

50

49

47

51

73

71

70

72

74

69

67

64

65

66

63

68

11 10
9

5
7 6

3
2

1

4

8

12

16

15

14

13

20

36

24

22

23

33

34

35

60

58

57

62

61

59

32

26

25

28

27

21

29

30

31

44

42

43

41

39

38

37

40

42

41

39

40

28

27

29

30

C
EC

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.
24

00
 8

6t
h 

St
re

et
 . 

U
ni

t 1
2 

 . 
 D

es
 M

oi
ne

s, 
Io

w
a 

 5
03

22
51

5.
27

6.
48

84
  .

  F
ax

: 5
15

.2
76

.7
08

4 
 . 

 m
ai

l@
ce

cl
ac

.c
om

Q
:\E

-F
IL

ES
\E

-7
00

0\
E7

44
2\

_C
3D

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\P

la
t\0

2-
FP

.d
w

g,
 1

1/
7/

20
16

 1
2:

23
:3

8 
PM

, c
m

cc
an

n,
 1

:1



64

63

68

20

19

33

34

35

60

58

57

62

61

59

53

52

54

32

26

25

28

27

21

36

24

22

23

51

73

71

70

72

74

69

67

65

66

11 10
9

5
7 6

3
2

1

4

8

12

16

15

14

13

18

17

55

56

48

46

45

50

49

47

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

OUTLOT 'Z'

29

30

31

44

42

43

41

39

38

37

40

57

62

53

52

54

C
EC

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.
24

00
 8

6t
h 

St
re

et
 . 

U
ni

t 1
2 

 . 
 D

es
 M

oi
ne

s, 
Io

w
a 

 5
03

22
51

5.
27

6.
48

84
  .

  F
ax

: 5
15

.2
76

.7
08

4 
 . 

 m
ai

l@
ce

cl
ac

.c
om

Q
:\E

-F
IL

ES
\E

-7
00

0\
E7

44
2\

_C
3D

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\P

la
t\0

3-
FP

 E
as

e.
dw

g,
 1

1/
7/

20
16

 1
2:

24
:0

0 
PM

, c
m

cc
an

n,
 1

:1



WRIGHT RD

ELMAVE

R
E

LL
IM

D
R

BR
AEBU

R
N

 D
R

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 H

IL
LS

 D
R

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
H

IL
LS

 D
R

ELM CT

W PINE AVE

TANGELO
 CIR

G14 HWY

VALENCIA CT

SY
CAM

O
RE 

DR

APPLE BLO
SSO

M
 C

T

ORCHARD TR

W NORTH AVE

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS
User Community

Norwalk Orchard View Townhomes - Vicinity Map ¯ Print Date: 11/10/2016
0 0.0650.0325

Miles

Norwalk Orchard
View Townhomes



 
 
 
 

 
 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 Item No. 11 
 For Meeting of 12.01.2016 
   

ITEM TITLE: Update on SubArea One Master Plan, Comprehensive Plan Land Use Chapter, and 
Comprehensive Plan Trails Section 

CONTACT PERSON: Luke Parris 
   

SUMMARY EXPLANATION & HISTORY:  
Staff worked with Confluence and a team of consultants over the past year to develop an amendment to the Land Use 
Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan, a master plan document for SubArea One, and a update to the Trails section of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  The City held a public hearing for these updates at the November 3, 2016 City Council meeting.  At 
that meeting, potential developers within SubArea One expressed concerns about the plan proposed.  These developers 
became interested in property within SubArea One towards the end of the City’s planning process for the SubArea One 
Master Plan.  The developers were concerned that the proposed plan would lock them to the style of development 
shown.  They requested that the Council table any decision on the SubArea One Master Plan while they worked on 
potential concepts that met the original intent of the City’s planning efforts for the SubArea One Master Plan.  The 
Council agreed but wanted to ensure that the project did not stall.  Council requested that staff and the developers work 
together and try to come to a resolution as quickly as possible. 
 
Staff has been in communication with the developers and continues to work toward a solution that is acceptable to both 
parties.  Progress has been slow due to uncertainty of the location of a potential user within the developers property 
located in SubArea One.  The location of this user has an impact on the immediate developability of the developers’ 
property.  Once a decision is made by that user, the City and the developers will have a better idea how the property can 
go forward while still meeting the original intent of the SubArea One planning process. 
 
Staff would note that many of the concerns raised at the November 3rd meeting were related to the SubArea One 
Master Plan.  There were fewer concerns on related to the update of the Land Use Chapter and the Trails section of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Take no action at this time. 
2. Direct staff to bring all three projects forward for approval at the same time. 
3. Direct staff to bring forward the Land Use Chapter Update and the Trails section update for approval while work 

continues on the SubArea One Master Plan. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
If the Council is comfortable with the current form of the Land Use Chapter update and the Trails section update, then 
staff would recommend they be brought forward for approval while work continues on the SubArea One Master Plan. 

Page 1 of 1 


	2 - agenda
	5 - minutes
	6 - Consent statement
	6a- Expenditures
	6c - ABD Council report
	6d -Appointment of P & Z Member
	6e - Comm Develop Coord and resolution
	6f - Administrative Coord
	6g - Bonds
	6h - 28E Agreement
	6i - Contract Midwest Alarm 
	6j - Fire Panel Resolution Install
	8 - agenda statement Ordinance Amend
	8 - Exhibit A - Sign-Regulations-Update 11.09.16
	9 - agenda statement
	9 - elevation
	9 - siteplan
	10 - agenda statement
	10 - final
	10 - vicinity map
	11 - update on comp plan



